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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

The trustees who are also directors of the academy trust for the purposes of the Companies Act 2006, present their
report with the financial statements of the academy trust for the year ended 31st August 2019. The trustees have
adopted the provisions of Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to
charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015) and the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the
Education and Skills Funding Agency.

The Rutland Learning Trust is a Multi-Academy Trust in the county of Rutland. It comprises of nine smaller than
average primary schools. Another school has an Academy Order and is expected to join early in 2020. An additional
school is also working with the Trust via a Memorandum of Understanding - from September 2019.

Principal activities

The principal object and activity of the charitable company is the operation of The Rutland Learning Trust to provide
education for pupils of different abilities between the ages of 4 and 11. In accordance with the Articles of Association
the charitable company has adopted a "Scheme of Government" approved by the Secretary of State for Education. The
Scheme of Government specifies, amongst other things, the basis for admitting pupils to the Academy and that the
curriculum should comply with the substance of the national curriculum.

Constitution

The multi-academy trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity with'no share capital (registration no.
9199785) and comprises of Ketton CE Primary School, St Nicholas CE Primary School, Langham CE Primary School,
Whissendine CE Primary School, Cottesmore Academy, Exton and Greetham CE Primary School, Great Casterton CE
Primary School, Empingham CE Primary School and Uppingham CE Primary School. The Multi-Academy Trust's
Memorandum and Articles of Association are the primary governing documents of the multi-academy trust.

The Trustees of The Rutland Learning Trust Ltd are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the purposes of
company law. The Charitable Company is known as The Rutland Learning Trust.

Details of the Trustees who served throughout the year are included in the Reference and Administrative Details on
page 1.

Members’ liability

Each member of the Trust undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it being wound up while
he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not
exceeding £10, for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

Governors' indemnities
The Academy has joined the DfE/ESFA Risk Pooling Agreement, which includes Governor's liability indemnity
insurance.

Recruitment and appointment of Members and Trustees

In the Rutland Learning Trust the majority of Members will be appointees or representatives from the Peterborough
Diocese Church Schools Trust. Members of the Trust can be also be nominated by either the Secretary of State for
Education, or the Academy Trust. The articles of association require the members of the trust to appoint up to twelve
trustees to be responsible for the statutory and constitutional affairs of the charitable company and the management of
the Academy. In the Rutland Leamning Trust the majority of Trustees will be Foundation Governors.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

Governance structure and lines of accountability

Please refer to the Rutland Learning Trust - Scheme of Delegation and Terms of Reference 2019
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When a school first joins the Trust, LGBs and their governors transition to the new structure as they are. Where LGBs
need to appoint new governors, the Trustees, in consultation with LGBs, ratify all new governor appointments. The
Diocese must also approve the appointment of Foundation Governors in the case of Church of England Schools. The
Trustees have the right to appoint additional governors where appropriate and to remove governors. More information
about local governor recruitment, application forms and appointments is available on the Trust website.

ANl RLT academies will have a Local Governing Body to which a range of decisions is delegated.

Where the Trustees have concerns about the performance of any of the academies within the Trust, their initial response
would always be to offer support from within the Trust — with a view to maintaining current levels of delegation.

In some circumstances the Trustees may appoint additional governors as a means of supporting decision-making within
schools. However, the Trustees have the right to determine in certain circumstances that a Local Governing Body
should have reduced decision-making powers. This will be unusual; a decision to remove delegated authority from a
Local Governing Body will be made according to criteria outlined below.

Where a school joins the Trust as a.sponsored academy, however, a restricted scheme of delegation may also be
considered / implemented until the school meets a range of criteria for re-instatement of delegated powers.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

Factors which may influence the Trustees decision about the level of delegation to each Local Governing Body include:

. School performance - attainment and achievement
. A recent Ofsted/DfE report

. Financial and administrative performance

. Leadership and governance capacity and capability
. Safeguarding and wellbeing concerns

. Health and safety issues

. Significant parental concerns/complaints

The Rutland Learning Trust is committed to transparency in reporting. This means that reports about academies are
shared with its LGB. Likewise, LGB minutes are reported to the Board of Trustees.

With the Trust’s School Improvement Team, the LGB supports the Trustees’ in identifying and addressing areas of
concern in the academy. Where Trustees are concerned about an academy, a Trustee Champion and the CEO will meet
with representatives of the LGB to discuss the issue. The LGB would have an opportunity to consider and respond to
any formal proposals for potential changes to the scheme of delegation made by the Trustees, which would then be
considered in a meeting of Trustees and LGB. Proposals for change might include additional support, additional
governors, replacement governors, partial or full withdrawal of delegation.

The scheme of delegation is the expected arrangement for all RLT academies. In any individual situation where the
Trustees determine to vary delegation, a specific schedule would be set for the circumstances of the school concerned.
Where serious situations arise suddenly, such as gross financial mismanagement, a serious breach of safeguarding
obligations or an adverse Ofsted inspection (any judgement less than good), Trustees will act swiftly to review
delegated powers.

For those academies with local level delegation of decision-making powers:

Local Governing Body (LGB) responsibilities may include deciding certain policies, monitoring whether the school is
working within the agreed Trust and statutory policies, whether standards are being met and if the money is being well
spent. The LGB will use its detailed knowledge and engagement with stakeholders to ensure that its school is being
well served by the Trust - and has direct access to the Board through the CEO or Trustee Champions if there are
concerns.

The CEO and academy Head teachers

In the Scheme of Delegation (SoD) the Trustees delegate responsibility for the performance of the Trust, including the
performance of the academies within the Trust, to the chief executive officer (CEO). This means that as the CEO is
accountable to the Board for the performance of the Trust as a whole, the CEO will report to the Board on the
performance of the Trust including on the performance of the Trust’s schools, although this may be supplemented by
monitoring reports from the LGBs.

The CEO is performance-managed by the Trust Board with support from an independent external adviser - if
appropriate - appointed by the Board. In the scheme of delegation, the Trust Board delegates responsibility for the
performance management of academy principals to the LGB, in accordance with Trust policy and with the full
involvement of the CEO and/or an independent external adviser, appointed by the Trust Board.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

The role of the Members

The members of the Trust have a different status to Trustees. Originally, they will have been the signatories to the
memorandum of understanding and will have agreed the Trust’s first Articles of Association (a document which
outlines the governance structure and how the Trust will operate). The Articles of Association will also describe how
members are recruited and replaced, and how many of the Trustees the members can appoint to the Trust Board. The
members appoint Trustees to ensure that the Trust’s charitable object is carried out and so must be able to remove
Trustees if they fail to fulfil this responsibility. Accordingly, the Trust Board submits an annual report on the
performance of the Trust to the members. Members are also responsible for approving any amendments made to the
Trust’s Articles of Association. While members are permitted to be appointed as Trustees, in order to retain a degree
of separation of powers between the members and the Trust Board, and in line with DfE current expectations, only one
member may be a Trustees. In RLT’s case that is the Chair of the Trust Board. Employees of the academy Trust are
not permitted to be members.

The Role of the Trustees (or Directors)

The Trustees are the charity Trustees (within the terms of section 177(1) of the Charities Act 2011) and are responsible
for the general control and management of the administration of the Trust in accordance with the provisions set out in
the memorandum and articles of association.

The Board of Trustees is the accountable Committee for the performance of all schools within the Trust and as such
must:

1.Ensure clarity of vision, ethos and strategic direction

2.Hold the executive to account for the educational performance of the schools and their pupils, and the performance
management of staff

3.Oversee the financial performance of the Trust and make sure its money is well spent.

Because Trustees are bound by both charity and company law, the terms ‘Trustees’ and ‘directors’ are often used
interchangeably. We use the term Trustee as it avoids the possible confusion caused when executive leaders are called
directors but are not company directors and Trustees. The Trust Board is permitted to exercise all the powers of the
Academy Trust. The Trust Board will delegate to the chief executive responsibility for the day to day operations of the
Trust. The Trustees can determine whether to delegate any governance functions.

In an emergency, the functions which the Board has reserved to itself for decision may be exercised by the Chair, after
having consulted with one other Board Member or the Chief Executive. The Chair is required to report any actions or
decisions so taken to the next formal meeting of the Board for ratification, with an explanation of why the emergency
decision was required.

The Trust has the right to review and adapt its governance structure at any time which includes removing
delegation.

The Trustees may establish committees either with delegated authority to make decisions or to provide advice and
support, informing the overall work of the Trust Board. However, these committees are not legally accountable for
statutory functions — the Trust Board retains overall accountability. The responsibilities of these Board committees are
set out in their Terms of Reference: Scrutiny, Audit, CEO Appraisal, Safeguarding.

|  Trsteos | Audt Committee | Scrutiny Committoe | CEO Appraisal s";fu‘;:.":'"g
Rav James Saunders (Chair) David Evans {Chair) | Adrienne Holland (Chair) | James Saunders | James Saunders
David Evans (Vice Chair) Kristi Withers Nicole Topham Nicole Topham
Adrienne Holland (Vice Chair) | Anna Raine Rev James Saunders Adrienne Holland
Nicote Topham Amanda Sergeant | Peter French
Kristi Withers Ian Blackburn Emma Keith
Anna Raine Rob Goeding CEO | Rob Gooding CEO
Amanda Sergeant Graham Kirby CFO
Peter French
lan Blackbum
Emma Keith
Rob Gooding CEO
Graham Kirby CFO
TRUSTEES are appointed based on their particular skill set:
LEADERSHIP, PEDAGOGY, FINANCE, BUSINESS, PERSONNEL, CURRICULUM, COMMUNICATION, LEGAL and
STRATEGY, ABIUITY TO DEVELOP THE CHRISTIAN ETHOS, MARKETING.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

The role of Local Governing Bodies Individuals who sit on local governing bodies (LGBs) are referred to as ‘local
governors’. This is because Trustees can delegate governance functions to the local level.  The continuous focus on
Teaching and Learning and high standards requires local governors (particularly Chairs of Governors) to be able to
interpret data and monitor performance expertly.

Composition

- Chair

- Vice

- Executive Head teacher/Head teacher

- Staff member

- At least 2 parents

- At least 3 Foundation Governors (St Nicholas must maintain a Foundation Governor majority overall)

Local Governing Body

The LGB meets at least 4 times a year

A LGB Resources Committee meets at least 4 times a year to consider — Health and Safety, Finance, Personnel,
Premises. The responsibilities and authorities of Local Governing Bodies are set out in the Scheme of Delegation.

The core purposes of the Local Governing Body are:

» To provide advice, support and challenge to the headteacher in leading the school, helping all its pupils to thrive,
guarding its ethos and managing its relationship with its community;

« To work with the Trust CEO on the performance management of the headteacher;

» To report annually to the Trust Board on the school's achievements and areas for development.

The role of an LGB is an important one. It is to provide focused, authentic governance for the Academy at a local level,
which does not duplicate the role of the Trustees. The LGB monitors the Academy's key performance indicators and
acts as a critical friend to the Headteacher and the Academy's senior leadership team, providing support and challenge
where appropriate. The LGBs carry out their functions in relation to their respective Academy on behalf of the Trust
Board and in accordance with policies determined by the Trust Board. The act of delegation from the Trust Board to the
LGBs is a delegation of powers and duties, not a delegation or shedding of responsibilities. The responsibilities and
authorities of Local Governing Bodies are set out in the Scheme of Delegation.

The Role of the Chief Executive Officer (CEO)

The CEO has the delegated responsibility for the operation of the Trust including the performance of the Trust’s
academies and so the CEO holds academy Head teachers to account and can performance manage the executive and
academy Head teachers. Where the performance management of the academy Head teacher is delegated to a Local
Governing sub-committee (LGB) this will be with the full involvement of the CEO and /or an external adviser
appointed by the Trust Board and in accordance with Trust policy. The CEO is the Accounting Officer so has overall
responsibility for the operation of the academy Trust’s financial responsibilities and must ensure that the organisation is
run with financial effectiveness and stability; avoiding waste and securing value for money. In this role the CEO will
have the power to challenge decisions made by Local Governing Bodies and may seek reconsideration of those
decisions. The CEO leads the School Improvement and Central team of the Academy Trust. The CEO will delegate
aspects of the executive management functions to the Central Business Team: CFO, Business Manager, HR Manager,
Lead Premises Officer.

The Role of the Academy Head teacher

The academy Head teacher is responsible for the day to day leadership and management of the academy as outlined in
their job descriptions. The academy Head teacher remains the lead professional in the academy and reports to the LGB
on matters which have been delegated — and may have responsibilities delegated to them by the LGB. This scheme
delegates responsibility for the annual performance management of the academy Head teacher to the CEO, to be
undertaken in accordance with Trust policy and with the full involvement of the Local Governing Sub-Committee
and/or external adviser appointed by the Trust Board.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chief Executive Officer/ Executive Head teacher (CEO) will be appointed by the Trustees of the Trust, to lead the
Rutland Learning Trust team to achieve the ambitions of the Trust and will be accountable to the Board through the
Chair. The CEO will also be required to report to the Members and other key stakeholders, including the DfE, the

Regional Schools Commissioner, ESFA and other statutory parties.

The Chief Executive Officer/ Head teacher (CEO) will advise the Board and lead the team in a way which is aligned

with our mission and values.

Principal Accountabilities and Responsibilities

Achieve the ambitions of the Trust as agreed annually.

Working with the Trustees to develop the vision, plans, and budgets setting out how the Trust and its constituent
academies will move forward towards the Trust’s strategic intent each year.

To ensure compliance with the requirements of the Master Funding Agreement and Supplemental Funding
Agreements for the Academy Trust.

To be the Accounting Officer for the Trust, personally responsible for the propriety and regularity of the public
finances.

Agree delegations with the Trust Board to the Local Governing Bodies and Head teachers of the member
Academies for their day to day operations, while agreeing with the Head teachers which matters are most
effectively discharged collectively.

To ensure compliance with the Rutland Learning Trust Scheme of Delegation.

To lead the Trust in achieving excellence with a focus on continuous improvement and raising standards.

To be wholly accountable for all aspects of Teaching and Learning and Standards across the Trust and act as
principal adviser to the Board of Trustees on all areas of provision.

Review the progress of the Academies within the Trust, liaising with their Local Governing Bodics, and take action
as necessary to ensure that progress and improvement is delivered and maintained, with a drive towards agreed
levels of progress and the highest grade of external validation.

Provide accurate and timely reports of activities and performance to the Trust Board, and all other stakeholders in
accordance with requirements, devising succinct but informing summary reporting systems.

Ensure the Board and schools are advised of current education policy or issues.

Utilise the collective strengths of member schools for the benefit of all members of the Trust, so that students
receive the best possible outcomes.

To provide motivational and inspirational leadership at all levels of the organisation.

Take a leading role in key plans and documents such as the Trust’s long term strategic plan, self-evaluation and
school improvement plans of the Academies.

Develop pan-academy strategies to support the economic life and well-being of the communities where we are
represented, in the sharing of facilities and ideas.

Act as an ambassador for the Trust in developing partnerships and links with stakeholders that promote a positive
profile of the Trust.

Be responsible for meeting the demands of changing legislation, new initiatives and changing practice.

Hold line management responsibility for all of the Head teachers in the Trust.

Develop and maintain strong working relationships with the Head teachers, Chairs of Governors, Governors,
Trades Unions and other key personnel within the Academies and Trust, to ensure the effective and collegiate
sharing of communication and knowledge.

To be responsible for developing a diverse, innovative, inclusive and personalised curriculum offer for all pupils
across the Trust. _

Support the need for effective communication, both internal and external to the Trust, including liaising with the
local and national media.

Convene and lead the Executive team of Head teachers and others across the Trust to deliver a collective and
consistent strategy, determining the best means of delivery.

Implement strategies and reputational management to ensure we are the ‘go to’ MAT in our local area which will
result in achievement of recruitment targets and maintain attendance.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

e Work with the Finance (Audit and Due Diligence) Trustees and Chief Finance Officer to drive efficiencies and
collaborative working across the Trust.

o Identify key agencies, individuals and groups that could enhance the work of the Trust, and secure their
partnership for the benefit of the Trust.
Develop strategies for the generation of additional revenue and resources for the Trust.
Support the Chair of the Trustees in the recruitment and induction of Chairs and Governors for member
Academies.

Oversight of new schools / projects

¢ Instigate and co-ordinate applications for the transfer of new schools into the Trust.

e Ensure appropriate due diligence and risk assessment is carried out, and present such applications to the Audit
Committee and then Board for consideration.

¢ Direct and manage transfers of schools into our Multi-Academy Trust, ensuring that appropriate and timely project
management is in place to achieve a smooth transition, complying with all appropriate protocols.

e Lead and work alongside functional specialists as required to achieve objectives.

¢ Lead and motivate incoming schools into the ethos of the Trust.

The CEO is an ex officio Trustee.
TRUSTEES - AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is a Committee of the Trustees and is authorised to investigate any activity within its terms of
reference or specifically delegated to it by the Trust Board. It is authorised to request any information it requires from
any employee, external audit, internal audit or other assurance provider.

The Audit Committee is authorised to obtain outside legal or independent professional advice it considers necessary,
normally in conjunction with the Accounting Officer and/or Chair of Governors. However, the Audit Committee may
not incur expenditure in excess of £10,000 in doing so without the prior approval of the Trust Board.

The role of the Audit Committee is to maintain an oversight of the Rutland Learning Trust’s governance, risk
management, internal control and value for money framework.

It will report its findings annually to the Trust Board and the Accounting Officer as a critical element of the Rutland
Learning Trust’s annual reporting requirements. The Audit Committee has no executive powers or operational
responsibilities/duties.

The duties of the Audit Committee are to:

Advise the Trust Board Accounting Officer on the adequacy and effectiveness of its govemahce, risk management,
internal control and vfm systems and frameworks. The Audit Committee will produce an annual report/minutes in this
regard.

Advise the Trust Board and LGB on the appointment, re-appointment, dismissal and remuneration of the external and
regulatory auditor.

Advise the Trust Board and LGB on the need for, and then, where appropriate, the appointment, re-appointment,
dismissal and remuneration of, an internal auditor or other assurance provider to enable the Board to sign the corporate
governance statement in the annual accounts.

Advise the Trust Board on an appropriate programme of work to be delivered by independent assurance providers

(external auditors and responsible officer). This programme of work to be derived from the Audit Committee’s regard
of the key risks faced by the Trust, the assurance framework in place and its duty to report to the Board.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

Review the external auditor’s annual planning document and approve the planned audit approach.

Receive reports (annual reports, management letters etc.) from the external auditor and other bodies, for example the
ESFA or DfE, and consider any issues raised, the associated management response and action plans. Where deemed
appropriate, reports should be referred to the Board or other committee for information and action.

Regularly monitor outstanding audit recommendations from whatever source and ensure any delays to
implementation dates are reasonable.

Review the Trust’s fraud response plan and ensure that all allegations of fraud or irregularity are managed and
investigated appropriately.

Consider any additional services delivered by the external auditor or other assurance provider and ensure
appropriate independence is maintained.

Ensure appropriate cooperation and coordination of the work of the external auditor and responsible officer.
Meet with the external auditor and responsible officer, without management present, at least annually.

Establish Due Diligence protocols, processes and procedures for schools wanting to join our Multi-Academy Trust.
Evaluate the effectiveness of our Due Diligence procedures.

TRUSTEES
Scrutiny and Policy Committee

In line with the trust’s arrangements — monitor, evaluate, and report to the Trustees on the implementation and
impact of an academy's curriculum and the quality of teaching and learning on targets, standards and pupil
achievement. )

Maintain a consistent focus on checking the effectiveness of the Trust Development Plan: recognise and celebrate
achievement towards achieving our Key Performance Indicators — identify areas for development.

Review policies as outlined in the monitoring and evaluation schedule.

Curriculum and Assessment

¢ Ratify Trust targets for educational attainment and standards.

e Monitor and report to the Trust on the achievement of targets and pupil/student progress.

e Review and recommend to the Trust for approval the academy's curriculum policy and development/

improvement plan. }

e Review arrangements for challenging the Academy Headteacher and senior leadership team to continually
~ improve outcomes.

e Ensure sufficiency and adequacy of data and information relating to standards and attainment.

Once policies, procedures, plans are approved - monitor, evaluate and report progress to the Trust on:

e The effectiveness of the academy's leadership and management, curriculum policy and the quality of teaching
and learning and their impact on pupils’ achievements.

e Compliance with statutory requirements relating to the curriculum — including RE/ collective worship, SEND
[statutory policy], sex education, [statutory policy], and early years foundation stage (EYFS) [statutory policy]
as appropriate, and for looked after children.

o The effectiveness of policies and provision for pupils with additional or special educational needs, and other
needs and the impact of targeted funding e.g. Pupil premium on pupil/student progress and attainment.

¢ Preparedness for OFSTED and SIAMS inspections.

Policies, procedures and plans

e Develop and/or regularly review and evaluate the effectiveness of all trust-wide, framework, or academy
specific policies and procedures within the remit of this sub-committee.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

SAFEGUARDING TRUSTEE

The Safeguarding Trustee will ensure:

All schools have a culture in which safeguarding is given absolute priority and staff feel confident to report their
concerns.

Safeguarding is given appropriate priority and time on the Trust Board’s annual agenda.

The ‘Annual Report to Members and Trustees’ will include a statement on the impact of the safeguarding
procedures used across the Trust.

The Trust Safeguarding policy, procedures and quality assurance activities are reviewed annually.

There is rigorous and effective monitoring of safeguarding by all LGBs — annual report to the Trust Board.
There is a consistent approach to policy development, dissemination and training across all the Trust’s schools.
Safeguarding risks are rapidly identified and addressed in the Trust’s schools.

Head teachers / DSLs act as “critical friends’ to one another and regularly share best practice.

Information on safeguarding failurés, ‘near misses’ and serious incidents are reported to the Trust Board and used
to identify areas where safeguarding needs strengthening.

Schemes of Delegation and Trust policies reflect best practice and identify clear lines of accountability.

Page 10



The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees and Governors.

“Induction is essential for all those governing in schools to ensure all Trustees and Governors are clear about what
their powers and responsibilities are and that they understand the organisation they are governing.” NGA 2018

Induction - Trustees

The training and induction provided for new Trustees will depend on their existing experience. Where necessary
induction will provide specific training on roles and responsibilities of Trustees, church governance, charity,
educational legal and financial matters. A skills audit/profile is completed to inform appropriate training requirements.
All new Trustees will be given a tour of RLT schools and provided with access to copies of policies, procedures,
minutes, accounts, budgets, plans and other strategic documents ‘which they will need to undertake their role.

An induction meeting with the CEO and Chair of Trustees should be undertaken within the first six weeks of
appointment. This meeting includes:
*  Welcome to a Multi Academy Trust Handbook - a guide for newly appointed Trustees
= How our MAT works - staffing and structures
= Governance structures - the role of Members, Trustees and a Local Governing Body
* An introduction to the Rutland Learning Trust Intranet:
Roles and Responsibilities - Trustees and Committees
Meetings and minutes - dates for future meetings and draft agenda items
Strategic planning - Vision Aims and Ethos: Our Strategic Intent
RLT Transformation Plan
RLT Scheme of Delegation and Terms of Reference
Policies
= Contextual information about RLT schools
Performance data, Finance report, Staffing, Targets
School improvement and quality assurance activities - ‘what we do’
Organising school visits - allocating a school to ‘champion’
RLT email address and intranet login details
Training events

Important documents

Articles of Association (website)

Audited Accounts - Annual Report to Trustees (website)

Trust performance data (website and intranet)

Scheme of Delegation - Terms of Reference (website and intranet)
Vision and Aims - Strategic Intent (Intranet)

DfE Governance Handbook

ESFA - Academies Financial Handbook

Funding agreement (website)

Induction - Governors
An induction meeting with the Head teacher and Chair of Governors should be undertaken within the first six weeks
of appointment. This meeting includes:

Tour of the school - an introduction to key staff members

Staffing - names and roles

Contextual information about the school

Contact details

A copy of the School Governors Year Book 2019

A discussion about how our school works - staffing and structures:

Composition of the Local Governing Body — names and areas of responsibilities, a brief overview of strategic
intent - our key priorities, vision and aims.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Report of the Trustees
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

* Briefing by Chair or Clerk to Governors on how your Local Governing Body (LGB) operates, its committees,
proceedings and protocols at meetings.

» Terms of reference for the LGB and committees.

*» Complete key documentation e.g. DBS, Safeguarding Policy and any other declarations of pecuniary or business
interests

* Complete a governor’s skills audit/ profile activity - consider areas of responsibilities or interest.

* A brief introduction to the Governor Intranet and school website by the Head teacher:
Roles and Responsibilities - Governors
Meetings and minutes - dates for future meetings and draft agenda items
Monitoring reports
Vision Aims and Ethos, Whole school key Priorities
School Improvement Documents - Action Planning
Monitoring schedules
RLT Scheme of Delegation and Terms of Reference, Policies
Self- evaluation forms. (SEF)
Performance data, Finance reports, Staffing, Targets
Governor visits
s RLT email address and intranet login details
* Upcoming training events

Important documents

= Most recent Leadership report to Governors

School performance data

OFSTED Report

Section 48 Denominational Inspection Reports

Minutes of most recent meetings

Articles of Association (RLT website)
_Audited Accounts - Annual Report to Trustees (RLT website)
Trust performance data (RLT website)

Scheme of Delegation - Terms of Reference (RLT website and intranet)
Vision and Aims of the RLT - Strategic Intent (Intranet)

DfE Governance Handbook

ESFA - Academies Financial Handbook

Funding agreement (RLT website)

Guide to the Law for School Governors

Training for Trustees and Governors

Key areas of training include:

= Induction - annual by the Diocese and Local Authority:
What is good governance — roles and responsibilities for Trustees and Governors in Church schools and
Academies?

= Safe recruitment for schools - safeguarding
= Data analysis

= Strategic Planning

= Self-Evaluation

= Admissions

School finance
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2018/19 Trustees and Governor Training
Effective Governance, Part 1 of 2

An introduction to SEND Governance
Safeguarding Update for Governors

Effective Governance, Part 2 of 2

Monitoring and evaluating with rigor, Part 1 of 2
Understanding Data

Pupil Premium for Governors

Monitoring and evaluating with rigor, Part 2 of 2
Developing the role of the SEND Governor
Effective use of Sports Premium for Governors
Roles and Responsibilities of Governors and Trustees
Handling Complaints and Concerns

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Please refer to the RLT Pay Policy as published on the Trust website.
The following are extracts from this document.

Determination of Leadership Group salaries:

e Group of the School;
¢ Individual Head Teacher Range (HTR);
¢ Salary ranges for other members of the leadership group.

For the purposes of determining the group of the school by which the HTR for the Head teacher is identified, the LGB
Resources Committee will re-calculate annually the appropriate unit total of the school.

The LGB Resources Committee will assign the school to the appropriate Head Teacher Group (HTG) whenever a new
Head teacher is to be appointed and on such occasions as the LGB sees fit.

The Head teacher/Head of School may make representations to the Review Committee to consider assigning the
school to a new HTG. The school must be assigned to its appropriate group not more than three years after the
school was last assigned to a Head teacher group.

If the LGB Resources Committee sees fit to change the group of the school having re-calculated the unit total of the
school in accordance with the STPC Document and the school is entitled to be in a HTG, the LGB Resources
Committee will identify a HTR which will ensure that the minimum of the HTR is not below the minimum of the
salary range for the HTG.

When a new Head teacher is appointed, the LGB Resources Committee in accordance with the STPC Document, will
re-determine an HTR on which the Head teacher’s salary will be paid, according to the size and circumstances of the
school. The HTR of the school shall be a range of consecutive salary points selected by the LGB within the HTG
range for the school.

The Recruitment Selection Committee, set up to appoint a new Head teacher, shall determine the salary point on the
ISR (Headteacher Range) to be paid. The selection committee will ensure that there is room for salary progression to
be determined by subsequent performance. The Recruitment Selection Committee shall have regard to advice
available from persons engaged by the LGB Resources Committee.

In the event that the LGB Resources Committee agrees to the school’s Head teacher also being made the Head teacher
of another school on a permanent basis, the Head teacher’s salary will be reviewed in accordance with STPC
Document. Where such a decision is made then the LGB Resources Committee will also review the salary ranges of
any other teachers affected by the arrangement by increased responsibilities.
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The salary ranges for a Head of School, Deputy or Assistant Head teacher shall be determined with reference to the
school's HTR as defined by the STPC Document.

Annual Review of CEO/ Executive Head Teacher/ Head teacher’s salary

At the beginning of each academic year (or at any such time as the LGB Resources Committee, in consultation with
the Head teacher may decide) the Appraisal Review governors will agree with the Head teacher, or, in the absence
of agreement, set performance objectives together with performance indicators/measures appropriate to each
objective. The performance objectives will reflect priorities identified in the school’s development plan.
The performance review and review statement will be conducted in accordance with the Appraisal policy.

In the autumn term of each year, the Trustees/Governors will receive recommendations from the Appraisal Review
team about the salary of the CEO/Executive Head teacher/ Head teacher / Head of School. The recommendation
shall reflect the Appraisal Review Trustees/Governors’ views based on the outcomes of the annual performance
review and the Chair of Trustees/Governors view of the overall performance of that individual during the year.

Any recommendation for movement up the HTR, on which the Head teacher is currently paid, will identify the
recommended number of progressed points proposed. The Head teacher will be advised of the proposed
recommendation and may make a written response to the recommendation.

The recommendation for the Head teacher will be made in a written statement to the Review Committee, giving
reasons for the recommendation and the level of salary that it is recommended should be paid from 1st September.
This will either be at the current point on the HTR or point(s) higher, subject to the maximum of the HTR, or any
additional payments as identified in the STPC Document.

Any recommendation for movement up the HTR, on which the CEO is currently paid, will identify the
recommended number of progressed points proposed. The CEO will be advised of the proposed recommendation
and may make a written response to the recommendation.

The Review Committee will consider the recommendation together with any written response from the Head teacher
to the recommendation and make its decision known to the Head teacher in writing on the salary assessment form by
31st December at the latest, to be backdated to 1st September.

The recommendation for the CEO will be made in a written statement to the Full Trust Board, giving reasons for the
recommendation and the level of salary that it is recommended should be paid from 1st September.

Determination of Discretionary payments to Executive Head teachers, Head teachers or Head of Schools.

The Pay Body may decide to pay additional payments to the Head teacher in accordance with paragraphs 10 of the
STPC Document 2015. Where a decision is made to increase the Head teacher’s salary beyond the maximum of the
appropriate HTG determined, the total sum of all payments made to the Head teacher will not exceed 25 per cent of
the maximum of the HTG, except in exceptional circumstances. Acting allowances for an acting Head teacher, Head
of School, acting Deputy Head teacher, acting Assistant Head teacher or a teacher acting up in a TLR post. In the
prolonged absence of the Head teacher, Head of School, a Deputy Head teacher, an Assistant Head teacher or a TLR
post holder, the Resource Committee - Pay Body may appoint a teacher to act up during the absence of the post
holder.

Related parties and other connected charities and organisations

The Rutland Learning Trust (RLT) was formed in October 2014 and is a Multi Academy Trust (MAT).
It currently comprises of nine schools:

- Langham CE Primary School

- Ketton CE Primary School

- St Nicholas CE Primary School

- Whissendine CE Primary School

- Exton and Greetham CE Primary School

- Cottesmore Academy
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- Great Casterton CE Primary School

- Empingham CE Primary School

- Uppingham CE Primary School

- Glapthorn CE Primary School, is also currently affiliated with the MAT through a Memorandum of
Understanding, an Academy Order is in place and the school should join the RLT MAT in early 2020.

- Polebrook CE Primary School, is also currently affiliated with the MAT through a Memorandum of
Understanding, an application to become part of the RLT MAT has been submitted to the RSC.

Arrangements for setting pay and remuneration of key management personnel

Setting CEO pay range and scale
Process: Affordability, Ethically, Transparency.

Methodology

1. Asses the market value - research information.

2. Benchmarking exercise with other MATs - review CEO pay ranges from within the sector.
3. Asses market value against affordability and sustainability

4. Demonstrate proportionality by measure of the ratio between the lowest paid

teacher (NQT) and the CEO salary.

The Rutland Learning Trust — January 2018

* L36-L42 based on benchmarking and research: 7-point STPCD pay scale - bespoke to the Trust
* The proposal considered that no pay progression had taken place since 2015

* The proposal was in line with the ‘Key’ guidance for CEO pay

* The proposal was in line with the benchmarking — in particular with local comparisons

* The range was within pay band 1 of the senior civil service pay ranges.

* The proposal allowed for progression as the RLT continues to grow.

Affordability

The differential appears reasonable considering the degree of complexity and challenge associated with
accountability for multiple schools and managing across several dispersed sites, which goes significantly beyond

that expected of any headteacher.

Pay progression

The pay range was based on a 7-point range of the leadership scale. Movement on the scale is not annual but based

on performance only in accordance with the current pay progression and appraisal policy.

Pension

Continuing to pay the CEO on the STPCD pay scale reinforces the case for the CEO to remain in the in the

Teacher’s Pension Scheme.

Public benefit
The Trustees have considered the Charity Commission’s guidance on Public benefit.
The key public benefit delivered by the Trust is the provision of high-quality education for its pupils...

Trade union facility time
Number of employees that were relevant trade union officials during 2018/19: 0

Please refer to Vision and Aims 2019 as published on the RLT website.
Please refer to 2018/19 Transformation Plan.
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THE
RUTLAND
LEARNING
TRUST

Working Together
Sustaining Excellence

Vision
& Aims
2019/20

THE RUTLAND
LEARNING TRUST

Providing outstanding education for
all pupils - today and tomorrowt!

Firzt-clozs education and care that allovsz every
child to achieve their potential, regardle:s of
location, prior attainment or background.

By

Working Together

Sustaining Excellence
Transforming Learning

“Every Part Depending on Each Other”

in 1 Corinthians 12, St Poul famously compares the Cheistian
community 1o the human bod;. Our eyes couldn’t do much & we
had no hands, and our hoad wouldn't get vory far if wo had no foot.
In the same way, we don't gt very far by teying to do Christ’s work
2'onel To cary out our mission, we need every bit of owr body to
work together, bocause exch of us hos gifts and our part to play.

“our bodies have mony parts, and God has put cach pars st where
ho wants it. ... Inixz, some parts of the body that seem weaskes:
and 0231 important sre actually the most necassary. ... This makes
foe harmony among the members, 30 that afl the membars care for
exch other. If ono part sufers, aft the parts suffer with it, 3nd if ono
part i3 honowred, 31 the parts aro glad.” {1 Corinthisns 12}

Vision

Our shated vision for the Rutland L ing Trust is to provid fing education for all

pupils; first-class education and care that allows every child to achieve their potential,
gnrdless of location, prior attol or backg 3

By Working Togothor to Sustain Excot! and Transf L ing we baliove that we can
for all chitd By working in this way, we know that every child will be

mlued cared for and have the very best chanoe to excel and achieve their potential. We seek

h|gh Iovels of atainment amd achievement across a broad, creative and inspirational

c M ble | i ate at the heart of aff we do. Every child

deserves to be successiut and our lole is 10 help them blossom and bekieve everything is

possiblo!

As 3 dedi { team of teachers, support staff, g parents and families we work with
love, professionalism and ¢ i on behali of all pupils 1o provide educational
provision of the very highest quality.

Aims
The Rutland Learning Trust aims to...

. Promote real, ine and pl. d collaboration - Working Together.

. Excoll - raise dards of achi for all pupits.

. Transform L Ing - provide wordd-class education and care that allows avery child
to achieve their p ial, regardless of location, prior attai or background.

The Rutland Learning Trust is values driven and educationally led; it aims to provide first-class
education and care that allows every child to reach their potential; it recognises the

importance of high quality teaching and leaming. It of a robust school improvement
system, with the ulti aim of domg hing | for children in our care. All
pupils vill feel safe and all will be supported, M\atever U\e:r needs.

The Rudand Leammg Trust aims for all of its schools o femies 10 be fing. This
means {or alt childien; & , enth ic, well- trained siaff that
provide bigh- quahxy hing, | g and i every day, and pupils

that leave education veell-propared l‘oc the next step of Lhelr lives.

The Rutland Learning Trust aims to ibute positively to the self-improving school-led
system in education across this locality. We are committed to adkiing real value to the

ity helping it b even more effective in order 10 achisve the very best for all
pupils. WB believe in true collaboration; vrorking in par hip, i ing in pooplo and
building capacity for fong term, sustainable success.
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Christian Ethos

The Rutland Leaming Trust is immensely proud of the team - a dynamic, high performing and

Christian values and practice are ai the heart of our shared talented ity. There is dous team spirit - we are all committed to the success of
life as Church of England Schools and ihey shape an each of our schools and we always put the children’s best interests first.
enquiring and respectiul approach to everything we do. We
have strong, well-established links with our local chusches Across all of our schools we encourage pupils to bei mqursmve and passionate about their
that contribuie regulatly 10 our schools programmes and we learning. We strive to develop confidi ed, positive young people who love
seek to learn about and from other faith-traditions in today’s to learn, contribute arid to achieve. Our inclusive learmng environment also teaches our pupils
world. to celebrate differences, help one another and promote a culture of tolerance and mutual
respect. Our vision for each child is that they will work towards their personal best, in a caring
. . atmosphere, which reflects the inclusive British and Christian values of our Academies.
Our Christian Values
“The ftuit of the Spiritis love, joy, peace, patience, Our Academies
kindness, goodness, faithfuiness, gentleness and self-
control. Against such things there is no la Galatians « Provide a broad, bal d and inspirational - knowledge rich curriculum for all children
5:22-23)  Produce independent thinkers and leamers who are ready for 21« Century Learning:
Resilient, Responsible, Resourceful, Risk Taking, Reflective and Respectful leamers.
« Develop confid: ive, self-assured, collaborative pupils who love to learn, to contribute
s g and to achieve.
Through our ChrIStlan « Encourage pupils to be inquisitive and passit about their 9.
. + Cultivate a desire within our children to protect and care for the environment and conuibute
commitment... positively to the local community of which they are members.
» Encourage all pupils to grow in stawyre, confid and self-est through 9

« We provide a warm, caring and Christian atmosphere in
which children feel happy and secuse and iherefore
receptive to learing.

« Children gain an understanding of the Chiistian faith and
what it means 1o be part of the world wide Anglican
family.

« We promote the Christian values of: kindness, patience,
faithfulness, unselfishness, honesty, forgiveness, loyalty,
trust, empathy and love as shown o us through the
teachings of Jesus.

« Children develop social, spiritual and emotional
awareness through these teachings.

« Children are taught o be sympathetic 1o the needs of
others in society, to conduct their lives with honesty, pride
and respect for all and 1o foim valued and lasting
refationships thiough experience of Christian teaching and
practice.

« Children receive a broad, balanced and inspirational
education, including the exploration of faith questions

that will pravide the basis of a successiul med life. ..

reward and recognition.

« Provide a wide range of extra-curricular and enrichment actvities to enhance and deepen
skills.

« Foster a healthy competitive atiitude, a desire to be successful, a commitment to fair play and
to appreciate and enjoy the pleasure of taking part.

« Ensure all children reach their full p ial by providing rel and challenging
technological educational expenences.

« Srengthen pantnerships with families so that they fee! fully involved in their child's education.

»Teach the British Values of democracy, the rnule of law, individual liberty, mutual respect and
tolerance of different faiths and beliefs - underpinned by our Christian values.

Our strategy is ambitious and exciting; it is to ensure schools within the Rutland Learning Trust
are ‘Outstanding’, not only in terms of an Ofsted judgement, but also in the eyes of our
learners, staff, families and our wider community members.

The Rutland Learning Trust Vision Overview 2018-2020
Providing outstanding education for all pupils — today ond tomorrow!

Wt kocs pebication el cov (222 ko' Prory chd 3 CEow thels Doterticd, regrredess of eeotien, ol aricinmert or boxtgrand.

Vision

r Working Together T Sustaining Excellence L Transforming Learning

A

*Empower {eaders to fully

Embed the 6Rs and school
and thelr Enhance our Trust P
Leadenship at ol evels Christian vision for thelr Refine our Pupil Premlum Strategy Ervichment Programme | ¥Plucsto develop Learring
racter” in all pupils
schools
o W
£
B *Pramote strategic growth of the Trust *Ensure high quality teaching
1
L ‘
o
Streteh and challenge puplls
Strengthen partnerships with | Ensure the Rutland Teaching i _
families 5o that they feel fully School Alliance provides Strengthen our Inclusion of al abilities img our approach to awrkulun? planning,
involved in their child's flective school i Strategy assessment and reporting:
o effective improvement MASTERY and GREATER Planning and Assessment
Jucation.
DEPTH
] -
Value for Money Effectiveness Sustainabifity
Demand Growth Funding T Effective resource management
—_— — - 10~ three yowns — by —

The Rutland Learning Trust promotes high achievement and learning for life through our commitment to PERSONALISED LEARNING and the 6Rs.

I () |

Alongside our Christian and British values, vision and ethos, this underpins everything we do.

Our strategy is undarpinned by ‘The Nine Pillars of Graatness’

« Shared vision, values, culture and ethos of high
expectations of all members of the schoo! community
« Inspirational leadership at all levels throughout the Trust
« Exceptional teaching, learning and use of assessment
A relentless focus on ging and involving pupils in all
aspects off school fife

Personalised and highly effective CPD

A stimulating and inclusive environment and climate for learning

A rich and creative - knowledge based curriculum within and
beyond the classroom

High quality pantnerships and networks

Robust selt-evaluation, data analysis and collective review

.

.

.
.
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TRANSFORMING
LEARNING

Improving the quality of teaching, learning
and use of assessment

*High quality teaching

The guality of teaching is at least good in each school.
There is no inadequate teaching. 100% good or bertter.

The Cumenlim is the maana bry which we Wit iie that afl aut childinan et their (i aram of the fich
Cutital idwritnce o world aflords. A youd curricukim wmpowurs Dikbon with the kwlidge tht
“whl Peiahy Bth tham and ths sescinty of whieh they am marnbors.

Clara Soaby - Premarytimenviotcom

‘Learning is defined as an alteration in long-term
memory. If nothing has altered in long-term memory,
nothing has been learned

“Character education seeks 1o develop and celebrate the
Hourishing.ol individuals,.communities, families.and
societies, through the cultivation and encouragement of
an expansive range of moral, spiritual, intefteciual,

and performance character virtues. It is
Christian vision for education for “life in ali its fullness’ and
is concerned with developing virtues seeing them as
‘character in action’, grown thiough experience and
demonstrated over time in woid and deed.

ntral 10 A

Characier education equips young penple o grow in
wisdorn, hope, community and dignity and is shaped by
an understanding of Gad at work in the world, present
and active in shaping each individual's developmental
story. It is fundamental to the pursuit of academic
excellence, and stands at the heart of all aspirational
teaching, learning and pastoral care.

Although character can and should be taught explicily in
schoals, it is frequently also caught implicitly through role-
modelling and relationships.

Effective character education will have a legacy
far beyond the school gates, impacting young
people as friends, neighbours, parents, team
members and employees, benefitting both the
individuals themselves, their wider

communities and broader society.”

CHURCH OF
LEADERSHIP

LAND: FOUNDATION FOR EDUCATIONAL

< and use of

Sérongziven the schoals curticubum offer to improve Gonnectednexs acros
all mbjects andt year & bramd -
erovtadge and vocabulary Soh Qaviadurn,

OFSTED The Qualiy of Mmlunmwnmmmz
OFSTED Section 5 or 8 krspection ~

Qur Currlculum
+ @ ambitious snd et by chrer wima,
d._u.,,. the whole perscon: kncwledge, tifks, underitending o=

o-hm.s o mbject

m.,..amn.
i cohersrtly planned and sequenced
hat tha pupits ing to leam
i with 1ich fest-hand purposetul expers

Baxitihe eerl responcive 1 contaxts, individual needs and interests
s succwechdly Gavigned ond developed kv pupits with special
ecucstionat aeeds and/or
+ it tve princile of wstainalsitty

the vew of e beyorsd the ot
and the rmocjor amsmn of oue e
Knawdosipe 0.

Uistening and sttertion: it it herd to listen and regond whan you do nat
v ther mearing of wosc o¢ social cume.
o ) N

akrcan what hes been encountered,
Soeaking: children need the words to express themashres effectively,

Tho new RE agrocd syllabua ls ambodded Into
the school’s curriculum offer. The quality of RE
provision and teaching is st loast good,

Enh

our Trust
programme

Al KS1 and KS2 prupits erw irveobradt in maskly ervichman,
activities scroes the achool or Tract,

il w riorms and
activition ecrove dve School, Tt snd County.

5ol Games - All echools 1D attain a1 lepet Sitver Auird. Gold
Awsrd within 3 yasrs of joining the Tnss,

AR prapsits across K52t have sctats to 8 wide range of
vohntoering and leodorthip oppoTen.

A upper KS2 pupils toke pert in an ! RIT Maths, Music snd
P ivetu: vaitiog, puidpiinral iy

tncroase the % of pupils READING at
GREATER DEPTH so that attainment is
above national averages across each key
stage.

AS pupiis Rave ¢ rich roasing exparienms that inchutos:

weitors uce of esiticat
Corers ant Gurtiond

ites o > reading
ioud 10 8 range of sudiances
© Aduhs resding aloud 0 pupils evary day using chatienging
taxen
@ Inepuirutinaal, Wgh queafity tmees and taramite
mahor
© Recwsrch projects and competitions
P supporting

© High P
nd vakiing resding st home

* Embed the 6Rs and School's Values to
davelop ‘Learning Character’ in all
pupils

Each school has a dear vision for ‘Character
Development’ underpinned by Christian Values
#nd the fundaments! British Values of
Democracy, Rule of Law, Mutual Respect.
tndividual Liberty and Tolerance of ather Faiths.

Pupils explain how the schoot's vatues give them
confidence to fisten, question, explore and challenge
themselves in pursuit of thels learing.

Pupils understand Aght and wrong - rewards and
consequencas for their actions, Thay feel happy et
safe.

Lesders usa creativity and innovation to provide quality
opportunities for pupils to explore situations of injustice
mdnequnﬁtysoopeﬂhgptwl: horizons, giving them
a concem for others.

The schoc! community has established mutustly
beneficial regiona! or global partnership inks to schools

“Character Education teaches the
acquisition and strengthening of virtues:
the traits that sustain a well-rounded life

and a thriving society.

Character education includes all explicit
and inplicit educational actvites that
help young people develop
positive personal stengths called
virtues...

Pupils need to decide wisely the kind of
peisun they wish to become and to learn
to choose between already existing
alternatives or to find new ones.”

(Framework for Character Education’, 2017
revised version)

in different parts of the UKAvard that are highly valued
by aduts and pupils afike.

Pugpils are articulate sdvocates of change, challenging
injustice, discrimination and ineqality. They luve reguler

work independently, collaboratively and creatively across
the curriculum.

Pupis fully unds the attrib fo ! -
readiness for leaming, resilience, resourcefulness,
respect, responsibility and reflective leamers.

and other forms of i
demermue pupils are confident, independent, self-

Tolerance of meemnt mllums & Religions

Mutual —» had Ms of Law
Respect

Weetag inger

Indnviduax

Individ .._- /

[rEN——— -

BRITISH VALUES

assured leamers. Thelr excellent sttitudes to learming
have a strong, paaitive impact an their progress - bath.
stademically and socially. They are proud of their
achievements and of thelr school.
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TEACHING &
LEARNING

Key Priorities

Clarity of objectives
ommns are dear and pu'pusnful with b\dlvd\v:en cbjectives that inform teaching sequences.

ive uze of wuccess aiteri iats pitch, challenga and high expectations.
©Childron hily understand what thoy a0 Io:mmg. vihy thoy aro tcaming and how thoy aro leaming.

Lesson design
oncremental, small step plaming

OPupils’ knowl and logically d 30 that it can dovel

P

bullding on priot laaming.

OPupils ary ragutary gvan opportunities to rvisit and practice what thoy knew to doapan and solldify their undorstanding.

They can recall information dlecuvely, which shows that leaming is durable.
OPupita can ind d fucnty uze thair g or ghil
Olndopondent tasks that match puplls” needs accuratoly.

©Teachers use ageapprapriate precise and technical vocatadary.

P lised feedback and use of
o‘l’uchendudpxp-‘h d seally, idensify
mamant Faacback, ncisive feacksack ‘5t tha point f keaming improvas puple’ schiovement.
QTeachers use A wide mnge of formative assessment strategies o p'an and assass pupil progress,
Aseos of weakness identified are fully eddressed in subnequent lexsors or teeching sequences.
OPupils cspitaliso on opportunitios to woo foedback, written of oral, to improve.

time -

differont areas of tho eurricutum.

tely and provids clesr, precise ‘in the

Increase the % of pupils
WRITING at GREATER DEPTH
so that attainment is
above national averages
across each key stage.

Improve MATHS attainment
at the end of KS2
so that outcomes
are above national averages at the
Expected Standard and Depth.

CURRICULUM and USE of ASSESSMENT

Strongthen the school's curdeutum offer to improve
connectedness across all subjects and year groups
10 mlde a broad and balanced, Inspiuﬂnnai

dodgo and bulary rich

Key Priorttles - Toaching and Learing

Increase the % of pupils
READING at GREATER DEPTH
so that attainment is
above national averages

Questioning to challenge and deepan di across each key stage.
QTeachars have goad tubject knowedge, subsacquantly pupils of afl abiltas aro sturchad and challanged tough incisho
and dovelopmontal questionng. e e g i oo
Pride and prosentation of written work :mmm..mmm
OPuplls’ work seraes tha curriculum is congistontly of o high quality. Vocabulary Saran, ¥
Thay aj the basic skills mar, and spalling cfloctvaly Py e angres.
<y apety & g tpeting Knowledge & Dreig . :
o repanrat
© Roxearch profects and compraliors.
Financial Mansgement Support
CENTRAL SERVICES 2019/20 frenddie en gt o e
O risions o ) - B o Rurand Losming st by « Contral france sdministration
daveloping 2] opersth P " % > and suppont e bespo!
e Seat ot g of of) pupits and stafl, ofthe itor
Our modatand oo g many y * RIT Busines Manager npport
Ofw, At P - hetp 1 cfocth « Rogudar vista, attondsnca w LGB meetings, advico and conaulancy.
Cur MAT % e opposite t0a " i Thi mwars o8 head
o port o The At Thin g . Aurht end Actoustoncy
twding ge (gorous bt pportive morizarog andt + Proparation and submiision of snnuel ecoonts pAss 0 year guidence
Y ha + Aerusd) complience #ud of scoc
+ Auckt of the Temchard Pervion Scheme
Our Contral Service pockape inchades: +Rasponsttle cficerfintama! Audit
Regudor and quolity pr chalcnge, scroting, coacing end support by: +Quatty arurance of proees ang suiebiky
A 10 the acadercy, belping evshists thei
Lagal Support
N - a - owes ot gt . -
§ the aemior f s ity to b besed on school size)
9 challenge the serior -
ormstion b0 koca coarmi - Gavermor Trafung and ncucson
. - + Deat Policie
] appraisat

+ Providing torgsted school to xchool support - CED, MLE, NS3, LLE, SLE, Pupd Premium Chempion, Primary Dirceier of CFD,
deplayment.

SEND, leod precttionet/teacher

+For the #rc1 yees, » Ioanightly vie fiom CEO o y schoct
£pocific need to embed TSt leved pyroens.

A porsonsl losdareip mentor.

Yy g g
+ A personat, Ay qualfied, GALLY Rippon sing
pomeezal
Acen )y organt ining hecop!
Cantraly orpanised Govemas Tréning.
~ Subsidized Diocese Sorvice Lavel Agroaments

RUF end Ruttend Teoching School Aflance (15 totema}

= Whole schoo! review ciys

- Pots Rardeen
- Suppors with cresiing
Plonning. Losdentip repor, mmms;uuﬁunm‘mv‘m
Appraisal, Tescher Profies, PoSices, Dats Capiture end Aralysia, Moritoring and
Bvatuation, Compliance, Moderstion

- Qualty Aszurance Visas trom CEO, QA Acvisor, Extomal Contutiants,
OFSTED tnspocton, Leading Head teachens

« Rudits: Seteguaing, Hoalth and Safaty

Educwtionsh Peychologints.
« Acrecs 10 Educsianal Aoychologisis an & termty Bads - 6 times per your.
Trainiey, cinica, wortshope, Resouces.

Payroll snd Personnel (HR)

+ Compretentia
RLT Buniness Manager end HR Manager).

advera, ipti chcks, SC,

The Rutland Teaching Schoo! Alliance
The Rutland Lazming Trust is & key sategic partner in the Rutland Teaching School Alliznce organiting » suite of
bopoke yining opportunities for teachers end suppon safl

+ Froe and reduced-price training - 15 tokans.

+ Primary Dirsctor of CPD mupport

«Support for school based CPD needs - bespoks training activities in school and acoss the Trust.
Manegement of cantral servicss and group procurement

« Our a¢adamios bonaft from graater efficiancy through g
+Support with GDPR and othor statitory compliance activities

for common

Facilities Management - Hedlth, Sefety and Well-being Services
+Leod Promisas Officer - Facilitios Mmuge:wwt
«C iva hoatth and
W-Imwnngmnmn-m
firn, tagionella, statutory inspactions, contractors,
ootk N
+ Full hoatth and safety audit programme, including
written cixk assessment reports with action ptana and

follow up.
- Evolve: Educational visits rigk gssessment/ootident
reporting (AssnsNey
«Support to srwure stantary campliance.
Admizzions
« Contral administration of procoss, offors
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Strategic Report
Trust and Academy Performance 2018/19

Un-validated P ) phonics
EE]  Oucomes KS1Reading KS1Reading KS1 Writing KS1 Writing KS1 Maths KS1 Maths
data Capture 2019 Qutcomes. Qutcomes.  Qutcomes. Outcomes. Outtomes.  Outcomes.
EXS GDS EXS GDS EXS GDS
C Academy 0] 8 23 8% 25 73 14 73
pingham CofE Primary Schoo! 4] 93 4] 7% | S 89 33 | 89
Exton and Greetham CE 9 89 12 92% 7 n | 14 57
Great Casterton CofE Primary School 151 93 9 100% 15 93 21 100
Ketton CofE Primary School 30 87 30 80% 27 ‘ 67 15 70
L ham CofE Primary Schaal 26 81 30 89% 29 83 31 76
St Nicholas CofE Primary School 22 82 21 95% 18 94 39 89
Uppingham CofE Primary Schoo) 21| 81 19 89% 21 62 4 10 62
Whissendine CofE Primary Schoo! 29 86 24 92% 28 85 30 82
B ~verage ALUSCHOOLS 10s] 68 |12 @ L) @ . B W
IR \ 0 sponsored academy N sy ﬂ A 51 s @ ' ﬂ N
Rutiand LA 2018 | 73 85 | 75 5% 69
| National - 2019 72 83 [ 75 26% 70
‘ Ave Scaled Scores
Un-validated Cohort . S S — —
Ty ty]] KS2Reading KS2 Reading | KS2 Writing KS2 Writing  KS2 Maths KS2 Maths KS2 GPAS KS2 GPAS
data 2019 e 0052) R ! Qutcomess ‘ Outcomess Outcomess ' Outeomess  Outcomess ~ Outeomess  Outcomess Reading . Writing  Maths
EXS GO EXS GD xS GD EXS GD
Cotteymorn 12 Se% | 8% ] 6% ™% 75% 17% 83% 2% 101
Em, CofE primary School 10 BO% 0% | 7o% 20% | so% 20% 50% 30% 104
Exton and Greetham CF 12 6% 1 3% % | em | ox Is% | % 012
Great Casteston CofE Primary School 12§ ss% _8% 83% 1% 58% 5% 2% 101 _
Ketton CofE Primary School 26 85% 35% 5% 0% 88% 7% 85% 50% 106 105
Langham CofE Primary School 30 80% 33% 3% 7% | 0% 13% 83% 2% 106 104 106 0.75 W w2 5
St Nicholas Cof€ Primary School 24 71% 33% 9% 13% B88% _29% 79% ] 25% 104 106 105 -15 [ ‘ 0.7
CofE. Schook n 78% ES- N s Y 7a% 3% 76% as% | 106 | 108 105 23 11 03
‘Whissendine CofE Primary School 26 ™ 31% 85% 19% °2% 86% =3 S0 | 107 11 109 0.1 .13 13
RLT Average AL SCHOOLS S m 72 W o 20 w )i [ 20 SR | 05 0.67 13
'No sponsored acdemy _ 0] m n_ 208 528
Rutiand LA 2018 | % | = | s | 1 [_n | = 1 s ] 3
Nationa! - 7019 | 3] 28 8 o 1 o ) e L s 1 3 P T 305 ]

2019 Unvalidated data: HEADLINES

Attainment in-line with NA at EXS and
GD

Early Years Foundation Stage

Good Level of Development:
4% 14% above provisional national data sets.
86% v 72%. 8% above 2019 LA averages.

Year 2 Reading

% 5% above at the Expected Standard
3% below at Greater Depth/ High Score

Year 1 phonic screening check

2019: 89%
$% 4% improvement on last year,
6% above National

Year 2 Maths

% 2% above at the Expected Standard
in-line at Greater Depth/ High Score

Year 2 Writing

9% 8% above at the Expected Standard
%% 1% above at Greater Depth/ High Score

Year 6 Reading

Year 6 Writing

Attainment in-line with NA at EXS,
marginally below at GDS

Year 6 Maths

Attainment in-line with NA at EXS
4% below at Greater Depth/ High Score

Year 6 GPaS

€% 3% above at the Expected Standard

marginally below at GDS/high score

Please refer to October 2019 RLT Data Pack for more detailed breakdown of 2019 outcomes.
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STRATEGY FOR GROWTH
+The Rutland Learning Trust has a defined strategy for growth, understanding the need to build capacity
in advance of new ies joining, and p P ing for thy [ of d-ﬂelent types of academies
or schools joining our MAT (start-up, sp church or
~The Ruttand Leaming Trust has a clear undemandmg o( the impact that different types and sizes of
school joining will have on its overall finance, teadership and g

+The Rutland Leaming Trust has planned for optimum geograp)ual coverage and is prepared to say
“n0” whare relevant.

+The Rutland Learning Trust has developed a strategy for growth: rate of growth, optimum number of

schoals at each stage, and the balance of sp: p ‘church -

community schools.

*The Rutland Leaming Trust reviews govemance, leadership and business structure when appropriate

(e.g. as the MAT grows to 5+ academies, and again at 8+), adding capacity where required.

CRITERIA FOR GROWTH
“Sustainable and progressive strategic growth = in line with DIE and Peterborough DBE Policy. .
(1015 schoals / or aver 2000 pupils by 2022) Hub 1
“Only 1 school in an OFSTED category per year unless they have had a recent change in leadership . X .
and/or can demonstrate strong capacity to improve with support o . Whlssendme, Exton, St NlChOIaS,

-Due d.ugence repart presemed to the Trustees outlining Chief Executive Officer recommendations

Lead HR, Health and Safety, Estates and Finance.
- 3 Year finance model and business case outlining potential challenges and levels of risk . o Cottesm ore, Langha m
- Swengths and areas to be developed
- Support required by the school Oﬁo
- Readiness for managed growth: Does the Trust has the flexibility, capatity and capability to raise . ’
outcomes, provide high quality schoo! improvement and respond 1o the bespoke needs of the joining
s:hool'l

ions on current infr and finances
Tho Ruttand Leaming Trust (following consultation with the Diocese, RSC and DFE) will explore
working with Church and Community schoots in Rutland end surrounding counties.

Hub 2
Uppingham, Great Casterton,

Empingham, Ketton, Glapthorn
PHASED GROWTH

*Head teachers from across the Trust meat weekly.
*Meetings have a clearly defined agenda linked explicitly to school or Trust priorities.
*Following consultatian, schoals ate assigned 10 a Leaming Hub.
*Head tgachars meet either ss a whole team or as part of a Leaming Hub where more spedific and
d school work can be
*The compasition of eam Leaming Hub is reviewed annually to reflect the profile and bespoke or
ing needs of individual schools e.g. dards; Leadarship and teacher speciali RLTZ
OFSTED Gmding, Capacity to improve and support; Geograpmcal mﬂuences distance between
schoals. Each Learning Hub has a lead school resp: le for ings, training events
and liaising with the CEO. This will be reviewed annually.

Polebrook
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Basis of preparing the financial statements

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared in
accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of
Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015)', Financial Reporting
Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland’, the Academies
Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006. The
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The Rutland Learning Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going Concern

After making appropriate enquiries, the board of trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Academy has
adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to
adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the
going concern basis can be found in the Accounting Policies note of the financial statements.

Financial Review

Reserves Policy
Establishing reserves that protect the operation of the Trust and contribute to its smooth running is good practice and
forms part of its overall financial control and governance framework.

When considering an appropriate level of reserves, the trustees consider future plans, uncertainty and funds
management.

In context, the RLT is in its infancy and is still bearing the costs of establishing an infrastructure suitable for the
planned growth. It is made up of small rural primary schools set in affluent locations and as a consequence is poorly
funded due to the needs driven funding system and consequently budgets have limited flexibility.

Teaching and learning is at the heart of everything we do and also the driver for the growth plan. Given our context
our level of reserves will be low at the early stages of our growth in order to maintain the required level of outcomes
in teaching and learning.

The in year surplus for the financial year 2018/19 will be 8% of General Annual Grant (GAG) income. The level of
reserve is reviewed and set on an annual basis as part of the budget setting plan. Over the next three years in line with
the Trusts growth plan the level of reserves is planned to increase as the benefits of economies of scale and
efficiencies savings are realised.

Reports to Trustees will compare the amount of reserves held with the target amount set for reserves and explain any
shortfall or excess in reserves against target set and explain any action being taken or planned to bring reserves into
line with target

Principal Funding Sources

Most of the Academy Trust’s income is obtained from the DfE in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which is
restricted to particular purposes. The grants received from the DfE during the year ended 31st August 2019 and the
associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial Activities.

During the year ended 31st August 2019, total expenditure of £6,391,478 was covered by recurrent grant funding from
the ESFA/DSE together with the balance brought forward from the previous year.
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At 31st August 2019 the net book value of fixed assets was £3,526,100 and movements in tangible fixed assets are
shown in note 14 to the financial statements. The assets were used exclusively for providing education and the
associated support services to the pupils of the Academy.

A full provision has been made to cover the deficit on the Local Government pension scheme of £2,743,000 as at 31st
August 2019.

The Academy held fund balances at 31st August 2019 of £518,362 unrestricted funds, 215,527 general restricted
funds before a pension deficit on the LGPS of £2,743,000 and £3,526,100 of restricted fixed asset funds along with
£65,164 CIF carried forward and £25,000 Start- Up grant.

Investment Policy

The policy aims to ensure that the academy trust’s funds are used only in accordance with the law, its articles of
association, its funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook. Additionally that the trust’s funds are used
in a way that commands broad public support, value for money is achieved and that Trustees fulfil their duties and
responsibilities as charitable trustees and company directors.

When considering whether to make an investment, trustees will act within their powers to invest; exercise caution in
all investments; take investment advice from a professional adviser, as appropriate and ensure that exposure to
investment products is tightly controlled so that security of funds takes precedence over revenue maximisation

Trustees will seek prior approval from the Education and Skills Funding Agency for investment transactions that are
novel or contentious.

Academy trustees delegate responsibility for the trust’s investments to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and the
chief financial officer (CFO) is responsible for producing cash flow forecasts and making decisions on investments.
The CFO also provides information to the CEO and academy trustees, as appropriate.

Funds are only invested in low risk, easily accessible accounts and a value matching the Trust monthly payroll
obligation will be invested in an instant access account. Funds will only be placed with banking institutions that are
regulated by the Financial Conduct Authority and with good credit ratings.

The following people are authorised signatories:
Robert Gooding - CEO and Accounting Officer
Meg Lucas Deputy - CEO

Emma Kirkland - Business Manager

Anna Raine - Trustee

Cash flow and current account balances are monitored regularly by the CFO to ensure immediate financial
commitments can be met and that the current account has adequate balances to meet forthcoming commitments. A
maximum of £85,000 will be placed with one financial institution. This is because the first £85,000 of an investment
is protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme.

Plan for Future Periods
Please refer to the ‘Promoting Strategic Growth of the Trust’ section above)

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

Further details regarding risk management can be found in the governance statement.

All risks are assessed and negated to the best of the Trust’s ability through a live process — strategic planning
proactive and a reactive process e.g. risk register, business continuity plans, PESTLE and SWOT analysis informs our
principal risk and uncertainties, disaster policy. The key strategic risks that are identified are assessed and for the
drivers for our strategic intent.
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Auditor

Insofar as the trustees are aware:

- there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditor is unaware, and

- the trustees have taken all steps that they ought to have taken to make themselves aware of any relevant audit
information and to establish that the auditor is aware of that information.

Trustees’ report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the board of trustees, as the company
directors, on 19 December 2019 and signed on the board’s behalf by:

Mr D Evans
Vice-Chair of Trustees
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Scope of Responsibility

As trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that The Rutland Learning Trust has an
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can provide only reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The board of trustees has delegated the day-to-day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting
Officer, for ensuring financial controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial
management and in accordance with the requirements and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement
between The Rutland Learning Trust and the Secretary of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting
to the board of trustees any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal control.

Self Evaluation
In 2018/19 the Trustees evaluated the performance of the Rutland Learning Trust against 10 Characteristics of
Successful Multi-Academy Trusts. These included:

Overall Performance - Standards: There is clear evidence that the outcomes for young people who are educated
within the MAT are exceeding previous performance and national expectations.

MAT Characteristic 1:

There is a well communicated strategic vision & plan that moves seamlessly from implementation into impact. The
school improvement plan can only be delivered through support from the trust and the trust priorities can only be
delivered through the schools

MAT Characteristic 2:
There is a clearly set out accountability framework that everyone understands including what happens when key staff
under-perform.

MAT Characteristic 3:
Quality Assurance

MAT Characteristic 4:
There is a clear delegated framework for Governance at Trust Board and Local Academy level that makes explicit the
accountabilities of both boards.

MAT Characteristic 5:
There are clear and transparent models of financial and resource management accountability across the trust.

MAT Characteristic 6:
School Improvement.

MAT Characteristic 7:
School to school support.

MAT Characteristic 8:
There is evidence of skilled management of Trust Risk indicators.

MAT Characteristic 9:
Succession Planning,.

MAT Characteristic 10:

There is a trust wide commitment to making a contribution to local, regional and national educational networks
beyond the MAT.
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The ten characteristics establish a definition that categorises development against four possible stages of MAT

maturity — Beginning, Developing, Embedding, leading.

is planned for Spring 2020.

Our 2018/9 self-evaluation is published on the RLT Website and includes Evaluative/ Impact Statements, Emerging

Priorities and Next Steps.

A review of Governance is also planned for each LGB in Spring Term 2020. A suite of documents and training

opportunities is provided by the Trust to support the LGBs through this process.
o Self-evaluation and LGB review - OFSTED Inspection questions.
e SWOT appraisal of Governor Performance - How well are we performing as a team?

¢ Governor skills audit.

Governor Profiles used to identify strengths of the LGB and to assist with recruitment.
e CEO: Monitoring of LGB Performance.

e Peer Reviews of LGB meetings.

Full Trust Board Attendance

06.11.2018

Gareth Williams 0
David Evans

Anna Raine

Rev. James Saunders
Amanda Sergeant
Nicole Topham
Adrienne Holland
Kristi Withers

Rob Gooding

[ S S = S ST o T o S S SR S Sy €Y

John Bryan
lan Blackburn
Rev. Peter French

Emma Keith

Changes to Trust Board

Mr John Bryan appointed 26.09.2018
Mr lan Blackburn appointed 07.11.2018
Mr John Bryan resigned 14.01.2019

Mr Gareth Williams resigned 14.01.2019
Rev. Peter French appointed 07.01.2019
Mrs Emma Keith appointed 17.02.2019
Mrs Amanda Percy resigned 22.08.2019

19.12.18
0]

[ T N - I

11.04.19
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This self-evaluation process has been further
strengthened in 2018/19 by using, “Twenty-One Questions for Multi-Academy Trusts: Key questions a MAT board
should ask itself.” Our next step is to establish peer review processes for the Trust Board and LGBs - and include
self-evaluation questions in the agenda for each Full Trust Board meeting. The next external review of governance
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The Rutland Learning Trust
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Audit Committee Attendance

David Evans
Anna Raine
Amanda Sergeant
Kristi Withers
Rob Gooding

lan Blackburn

Scrutiny Committee Attendance

Gareth Williams
Rev. James Saunders
Nicole Topham
Adrienne Holland
Rob Gooding

Rev. Peter French

Emma Keith

Review of Value for Money
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As accounting officer the Chief Executive Office has responsibility for ensuring that the academy trust delivers good
value in the use of public resources. The accounting officer understands that value for money refers to the
educational and wider societal outcomes achieved in return for the taxpayer resources received.

The accounting officer considers how the trust’s use of its resources has provided good value for money during each
academic year, and reports to the board of trustees where value for money can be improved, including the use of
benchmarking data where appropriate. The accounting officer for the academy trust has delivered improved value

for money during the year by:
Improving educational results

Ketton CE Primary School

Schools OFSTED SIAMS Inspection
Cottesmore Academy Sp or!sored Academy: NA
Requires Improvement
Empingham CE Good Good
Exton and Greetham CE Good Good
Great Casterton CE ' Good

PR Outstanding

Langham CE Primary School

Olltldi_ng ;

Good

St Nicholas CE Primary School

Good

Outstanding} o

Uppingham CE Primary School |

Good

Whissendine CE Primary School

Qutstanding

Qutstanding )
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e Regular and systematic review of staff deployment to ensure the best use of skills, expertise and experience. This
ensures that the quality of teaching, learning, use of assessment and curriculum provision across the Trust is
consistently high. The quality of teaching across the Trust is almost always good with many examples of
outstanding practice.

¢ In April 2018, the Rutland Learning Trust sponsored Cottesmore Academy.
“The RSC anticipates that following an imminent OFSTED Cottesmore would be deemed inadequate in all areas
and placed into Special Measures. The school does not have the capacity to improve.” The school was
inspected in September 2018 and now Requires Improvement. This is a substantial achievement in such a short
space of time.

“We are delighted to inform you that the lead HMI Inspector stated that Cottesmore Academy is on a very exciting
journey and although we have got things to work on we are RAPIDLY IMPROVING - under the leadership of Mrs
Lucas who has only been in post since April.

= The recently appointed headteacher has brought ambition and drive to the school. She is establishing a culture of
higher expectations. Staff morale is improving.

* Leaders have accurately identified the most important areas for improvement. They have brought about
improvements in the areas in which they have focused.

= Standards are improving - attainment and progress.

(PLEASE ALSO REFER TO RLT DATA DASHBOARDS and ANALYSIS)

* Leaders have provided a range of support and introduced many initiatives. The quality of teaching is improving.

= Behaviour is improving. Pupils are polite. They conduct themselves well at all times of the school day.

« Approaches to the teaching of mathematics are improving standards

» The local governing body has a secure overview of the school’s strengths and areas in which it needs to improve.
The governing body is knowledgeable about the school’s actions and initiatives to improve standards.

* There is a strong culture of safeguarding.

* Leaders have made improvements to the school’s physical environment. The school is tidy and well organised.
There is a calm atmosphere. Pupils have good manners and conduct themselves well at playtimes, lunchtimes, in
assemblies and in school corridors at all times of the school day. Pupils are friendly and polite.

= The new coordinator for the provision for pupils who have SEN and/or disabilities is rapidly strengthening school
systems.”

e Uppingham CE Primary School
OFSTED. This school continues to be good.
“You and the leadership team, together with governors, have maintained the good quality of education in the school
since the last inspection. Your leadership of the school is respected and valued by staff and parents and carers. You
have an in- depth understanding of the school’s strengths and areas of weakness. Your evaluation of the school is
comprehensive and accurate. Consequently, you have identified the priorities in areas requiring further
improvement and your planning is well considered. Governors are kept well informed about school developments
and the extent of both challenge and support has strengthened. Governors are supportive of the headteacher and
make regular visits to the school in support of its further improvement. The external support provided by the local
authority and the prospective Rutland Learning Trust has been instrumental in supporting leaders’ drive for
improvement. This support has sharpened processes to ensure consistency, clearer accountability and improved
subject leadership. The culture of the school is positive and welcoming, staff morale is high, and the pupils are polite
and courteous. Pupils are proud to be at the school and describe it as a friendly and fair school.”

SIAMS. April 2019. This school continues to be good.

“The strong and passionate leadership of the head teacher and governors, supported by the multi academy trust
(MAT) and the diocese, has created a vibrant, inclusive Christian community in which everyone flourishes. The clear
and uncompromising vision reflecting the local community, motivates and inspires everyone in the school family.
This has a profound impact on pupil’s wellbeing. Pupils are passionate about religious education (RE). The subject is
instrumental in helping pupils to live well together and inspires a sense of self belief. Collective worship is joyful and
uplifting. Pupils are involved with many aspects of worship but further development of their role in planning, leading
and evaluating would enhance this.”

e We have sustained and increased the level of intervention staff and use of specialist teachers to help raise
standards. This effective and efficient re-deployment of staff and resources has enabled the Trust to support all
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children. Through prudent strategic financial planning and maximising the use of resources we have been able
to fund additional teachers for specialist early literacy intervention, provide additional music teaching, increase
levels of sports coaching and employ a language specialist across the schools. These joint appointments are
having a positive impact on children’s achievement across all ages — both for curriculum and enrichment
opportunities. The impact of this is measured not only in terms of pupil progress but also in terms of improving
learning dispositions, attendance, attitudes and behaviour.

e Head teachers meet weekly to discuss school improvement. Activities undertaken have included: leadership
training, policy development {Teaching, Learning and Assessment); data analysis; Pupil Premium; curriculum
remodeling; monitoring and evaluating our Sports Strategy; communication with parents and sharing of
outstanding practice.

e The Rutland Learning Trust regularly reviews its provision and utilizes external providers to quality assure and
benchmark our provision. Our School Improvement and Quality Assurance Team, working alongside Head
teachers and Governors/Trustees, has reviewed all of our schools. The outcomes for each school are then
shared with the Governors at the next meeting where the school development plan is reviewed with key

" priorities refined.

Improving the quality of teaching:

The overal!l quality of teaching in each school is almost always good with areas of outstanding practice across all
key stages, in each setting. This is validated through OFSTED, Diocese Inspections and other external/internal
quality assurance monitoring activities.

We strive to ensure standards continue to rise - increasing the proportion of pupils making better than expected or
accelerated progress across all ability groups in reading, writing and maths; especially those pupils with additional
needs (support) and disadvantaged pupils. We endeavor to ensure all groups of pupils are offered high quality
learning tasks that allow them to be stretched and challenged whatever their ability.

Please refer to our Teaching and Learning - Key Priorities 2019; highlighted above.

Financial governance and oversight

The Trustees and Governors carry out a skills audit, profiling and competencies exercise to ensure suitability to
their role. New Trustees/Governors are actively sought to widen the skills portfolio or fill a current vacancy. As a
result, they can use their professional experience to actively challenge decision-making and offer practical advice.
The Trustees and Governors receive regular budget monitoring reports and medium-term planning with option
appraisal analysis during budget setting or to consider any changes in direction.

Fitness for purpose
Through the Academy conversion process we changed our banking arrangements, we now have online banking
ensuring better control and monitoring of the bank account. Charge cards enable us to access best value through

online purchases. We have become a cashless Academy through a parent payment and income management tool
reducing administration costs of cash handling and making the process more secure.

We have entered into a joint procurement scheme with other local schools for the schools meals provision.
In 2018/19 we have began to embed the use of PS Financials across the Trust and have recently introduced an

automated payment system (BACS) at each Academy. All funds are now held and managed centrally with schools
maintaining accounts with low balances to manage local transactions.
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Benchmarking
Our income and expenditure is benchmarked between our academy trust schools. This has been useful in
highlighting different levels of spend for the same services, for example photocopying contracts. :

We also benchmark our income and expenditure against national sample sets. We compare at a local level, and
then natio\nally based on chosen criteria. We incorporate size, location, social setting and additional needs into the
criteria. We also benchmark for improvement looking at other high performing academies. The value of the process
is that it prompts us to question and challenge our spending strategies or validate decision-making.

Tender exercises are undertaken to ensure that high value contracts are assessed against the marketplace on a
regular basis to ensure that long-term contracts (3 to 5 years) remain competitive.

For purchases above £5,000, but below the tender limit, 3 quotes are required. Where the quality and provision of
products/or services are securely high and consistent, multiyear purchasing contracts have been entered into to gain
discounts and best value across the Trust.

Better income generation

Grants

The Academy explofes every opportunity to generate income linked to the hire of Academy facilities and also linked
to the Teaching School designation (e.g. leading conferences and courses, providing school to school support, initial

teaching training and mentoring).

In 2018/19 the Trust has also been successful with several bids for additional funding:

DfE School Improvement £95,200
Royal British Legion {Service Children) £6,880
MOD Education Services Grant £45,000
RCC Prince William Award £11,800
Condition Improvement Fund (Exton & Greetham) £205,146

QOutreach work
The Rutland Learning ‘Trust has achieved NLE {National Leader in Education), LLE {Local Leader in Education), Pupil
Premium, National Support School Status and Sponsor Status. The CEQ is also an OFSTED Inspector.

The Purpose of the System of internal Control

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of
failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives. It can, therefore, only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance of effectiveness. The system of internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and
prioritise the risks to the achievement of academy trust policies, aims and objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of
those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to manage them efficiently, effectively and
economically. The system of internal control has been in place in The Rutland Learning Trust for the year ended 31
August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements.

Capacity to Handle Risk

The board of Trustees has reviewed the key risks to which the academy trust is exposed together with the operating,
financial and compliance controls that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The board of Trustees is of
the view that there is a formal on-going process for identifying, evaluating and managing the academy trust's
significant risks that has been in place for the period up to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the
annual report and financial statements. This process is reviewed regularly by the board of Trustees.

The Risk and Control Framework

The academy trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management
information and administrative procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and
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accountability. In particular it includes:

e Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which
are reviewed and agreed by the board of trustees.

e Regular reviews by the audit committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the forecasts

and of major purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes

Setting targets to measure financial and other performance

Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines

Delegation of authority and segregation of duties

Identification and management of risks

The board of Trustees trust employs an external financial management provider to provide support with the higher
functions. Accountants have been appointed and carry out the annual audit of accounts to ensure compliance and
provide assurance to the trust. The Trust also employ another company to carry out a ‘responsible officer role’ to
report directly to the audit committee. They look at operation, process and suitability of our financial operations and
provide assurance to the trust. The internal /reviewer provides advice on financial matters and performing a range
of checks on the academy trust’s financial systems. In particular the checks carried out in the current period
included: testing of payroll systems, testing of purchase systems, testing of control account/ bank reconciliations.

On a quarterly basis, the CFO reports to the board of trustees, through the audit committee on the operation of the
systems of control and on the discharge of the board of trustees’ financial responsibilities.

Reviewing control and managing risks

Regular budget reports are reviewed to ensure expenditure is in line with budgeted expectations and any variations
explained. Medium term planning and option appraisals are also utilised during budget planning and to consider
new opportunities or changes in direction.

We employ strategic planning activities such as a SWOT analysis to evaluate our internal strengths and weaknesses.
A PESTLE identifies key external influences considering the environment we operate in. This helps inform our
financial strategy.

We are in the process of embedding a more robust trust level financial strategy that will ensure the trust continues
to be sustainable and aligns with the EFA funding philosophy. A 5% top slicing strategy has been shared and agreed
with the Trustees, RSC and DfE for when new schools join the Trust.

Our current critical success factors are:

e Demand: Pupil numbers, reputation, credibility, OFSTED rating

Growth 10 — 15 schools or 2000 pupils

Funding: Resilient and flexible financial model

Effective resource management: Staffing, Central Services, Procurement
Key staff retention - increased leadership capacity

These critical success factors are underpinned by our Financial Aims of:
e Value for money

e Effectiveness

e Sustainability.

Cash balances held attract a small amount of interest. Investment opportunities are an area of focus for the coming
year. The trust is also moving towards a trust level contingency rather than individual academy to ensure a higher
level of funding is deployed or committed to the objectives of the trust.
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Review of Effectiveness .

As accounting officer the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of
internal control. During the year in question the review has been informed by:

the work of the internal auditor/reviewer - EdBC

the work of the external auditor — Hardings Accountants

the financial management and governance self-assessment process

the work of the Chief Finance Officer within the academy trust who has responsibility for the development and
maintenance of the internal control framework

The accounting officer has been advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal
control by the Trustees and Governors and a plan to address any identified weaknesses and ensure continuous
improvement of the system is in place.

Approved by order of the members of the board of trustees on 19 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

Mr D Evans - -Chair of Trustees.

Signed:

o1y ek 2014

Mr R Gooding - Accounting Officer

o AN L

Date:lc[ W ‘Q‘O\c\
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“The Rutland Learning Trust

Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

As accounting officer of The Rutland Learning Trust I have considered my responsibility to notify the academy trust
board of trustees and the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) of material irregularity, impropriety and
non-compliance with terms and conditions of all funding received by the academy trust, under the funding agreement in
place between the academy trust and the Secretary of State for Education. As part of my consideration I have had due
regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that I and the academy trust board of trustees are able to identify any material irregular or improper use of all -
funds by the academy trust, or material non-compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the academy
trust's funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook 2018.

I confirm that no instances of material irregularity, impropriety or funding non-compliance have been discovered to

date. If any instances are identified after the date of this statement, these will be notified to the board of trustees and
ESFA.

.............................................

Mr R Gooding - Accounting Officer

Date: 19 December 2019
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The trustees (who act as governors of The Rutland Learning Trust and are also the directors of the charitable company
for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Report of the Trustees and the financial statements
in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United
Kingdom Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and
regulations.

Company law requires the trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the
trustees must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the academy trust and of the incoming resources and application of resources, including the income and
expenditure, of the academy trust for that period. In preparing those financial statements, the trustees are required to

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to
2019;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

- prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
academy trust will continue in business.

The trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
academy trust's transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the academy
trust and to enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsible for safeguarding the assets of the academy trust and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and
detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the academy trust applies financial and other
controls, which conform with the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also
responsible for ensuring grants received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.

The trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the
charitable company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination-of
financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Approved bxorder of the board of trustees on 19 December 2019 and signed on its behalf by:

.............................................

Mr D Evans - Vice-Chair of Trustees
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Report of the Independent Auditors to the Members of
The Rutland Learning Trust

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of The Rutland Learning Trust (the ‘academy trust') for the year ended
31st August 2019 which comprise the Statement of Financial Activities, the Balance Sheet, the Cash Flow Statement
and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law, United Kingdom Accounting Standards (United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and the Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education
and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA).

In our opinion the financial statements:

- give a true and fair view of the state of the academy trust's affairs as at 31st August 2019 and of its incoming
resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure, for the year then ended;

- have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice;

- have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006; and

- have been prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP 2015 and Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to
2019.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the academy trust in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to

you where:

- the trustees' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

- the trustees have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the academy trust's ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for
a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

Other information
The trustees are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, other than the financial statements and our Report of the Independent Auditors thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise
explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or
apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial
statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

- the information given in the Report of the Trustees for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

- the Report of the Trustees has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are required to report by exception

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the academy trust and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the Report of the Trustees.
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Matters on which we are required to report by exception

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters where the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to

you if; in our opinion:

- adequate accounting records have not been kept or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from
branches not visited by us; or

- the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

- certain disclosures of trustees' remuneration specified by law are not made; or

- we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

Responsibilities of trustees

As explained more fully in the Statement of Trustees Responsibilities, the trustees (who are also the directors of the
charitable company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and
for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the trustees determine is necessary
to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the trustees are responsible for assessing the academy trust's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the trustees either intend to liquidate the academy trust or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue a Report of the Independent Auditors that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial
Reporting Council's website at www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our Report of
the Independent Auditors.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the academy trust's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the academy trust's members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditors’ report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the academy trust and the academy trust's

members as a body, for oﬁt work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.
RIXE

Timothy McNeal FCA (Senior Statutory Auditor)
for and on behalf of Hardings ’
Chartered Accountants & Statutory Auditor

6 Marsh Parade

Newcastle-under-Lyme

Staffordshire

ST5 1DU

Date: 19 December 2019
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Independent Reporting Accountant's Assurance Report on Regularity to
The Rutland Learning Trust and the Education and Skills Funding Agency

In accordance with the terms of our engagement and further to the requirements of the Education and Skills Funding
Agency (ESFA), as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019, we have carried out an engagement to
obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by The Rutland Learning Trust
during the period 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament
and the financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

This report is made solely to The Rutland Learning Trust and the ESFA in accordance with the terms of our
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to The Rutland Learning Trust and the ESFA
those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we
do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than The Rutland Learning Trust and the ESFA, for our work,
for this report, or for the conclusion we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of The Rutland Learning Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant

The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of The Rutland Learning Trust's funding agreement with
the Secretary of State for Education and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1st September 2018, for
ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them.

Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance and
are to obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the
Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying
out our work which suggests that in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period
Ist September 2018 to 31st August 2019 have not been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial
transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Approach
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the
ESFA. We performed a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter.

The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and
explanations in order to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity.

A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently
does not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in
a reasonable assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion.

Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the
academy trust's income and expenditure.

Conclusion

In the course of our work, nothing has come to our 1on which suggests that in all material respects the expenditure
disbursed and income received during the 0d 1st September 2018 to 31st August 2019 has not been applied to
purposes intended by Parliament and th I transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them.

Hardings
Chartered Accou

Staffordshire
STS 1DU

Date: 19 December 2019
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Statement of Financial Activities
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

31/8/19 31/8/18
Restricted
Unrestricted fixed assets Restricted Total Total
) fund fund fund funds funds
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Income and endowments from
Donations and capital grants 2 - 95,005 321,209 416,214 2,247,646
Transfer from Local Authority
on conversion 26 240,406 3,335 (372,000) (128,259) 112,618
Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's
educational operations 3 - - 5,492,764 5,492,764 3,749,110
Other trading activities 4 14,727 - 419,312 434039 368,544
Investment income 5 700 - - 700 264
Total 255,833 98,340 5,861,285 6,215,458 6,478,182
Expenditure on
Raising funds 7 - - 105,249 105,249 77,601
Charitable activities :
Academy's educational
operations - 116,536 6,169,693 6,286,229 4,465,296
Total 6 - 116,536 6,274,942 6,391,478 4,542,897
Net income/(expenditure) 255,833 (18,196) (413,657) (176,020) 1,935,285
Transfers between funds 22 - 214,020 (214,020) - -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/losses on defined
benefit schemes - - (699,000) (699,000) 304,000
Net movement in funds 255,833 195,824 (1,326,677) (875,020) 2,239,285
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 262,529 3,330,276 (1,110,632) 2,482,173 242,888
Total funds carried forward 518,362 3,526,100 (2,437,309) 1,607,153 2,482,173

All of the academy trust's activities derive from continuing operations and acquisitions in the current year.

The notes form part of these financial statements
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The Rutland Learning Trust (Registered number: 09199785)

Balance Sheet

At 31st August 2019
31/8/19 31/8/18
Restricted
Unrestricted fixed assets Restricted Total Total
fund fund fund funds funds
Notes £ £ £ £ £
Fixed assets
Tangible assets 14 - 3,526,100 - 3,526,100 3,330,278
Current assets .
Stocks 15 - - 3,771 3,771 -
Debtors 16 36,878 - 516,427 553,305 536,657
Cash at bank and in hand 481,484 - 259,863 741,347 438,443
518,362 - 780,061 1,298,423 975,100
Creditors
Amounts falling due within one
year 17 - - (389,370) (389,370) (394,205)
Net current assets 518,362 - 390,691 909,053 580,895
Total assets less current
liabilities 518,362 3,526,100 390,691 4,435,153 3,911,173
Creditors
Amounts falling due after more
than one year 18 - - (85,000) (85,000) (85,000)
Pension liability 23 - - (2,743,000) (2,743,000) (1,344,000)
Net assets 518,362 3,526,100 (2,437,309) 1,607,153 2,482,173
Funds 22
Unrestricted funds 518,362 262,529
Restricted funds 1,088,791 2,219,644
Total funds 1,607,153 2,482,173

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Trustees on 19th December 2019 and were signed on its behalf
by:

Mr D Evans -Trustee

The notes form part of these financial statements
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Cash Flow Statement
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

Notes
Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash generated from operations 27

Net cash provided by (used in) operating
activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of tangible fixed assets
Capital grants from DIE/ESFA
Interest received

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:
New loans in year

Net cash provided by (used in) financing
activities

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
reporting period

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
reporting period

31/8/19
£

352,106

352,106

(309,023)
259,121
700

(49,202)

302,904

438,443

741,347

The notes form part of these financial statements
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31/8/18
£

(12,638)

(12,638)

(339,070)
450,484
264

111,678

85,000

85,000

184,040

254,403

438,443




The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

1.

Accounting policies

Basis of preparing the financial statements )

The financial statements of the academy trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been
prepared in accordance with the Charities SORP (FRS 102) 'Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement
of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in accordance with the Financial
Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102) (effective 1 January 2015),
Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of
Ireland', the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the
Companies Act 2006. The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention.

The Rutland Learning Trust meets the definition of a public benefit entity under FRS 102.

Going concern

The trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material
uncertainties related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the company to
continue as a going concern. The trustees make this assessment in respect of a period of one year from

the date of approval of the financial statements.

Income
All income is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities once the academy trust has entitlement to the
funds, it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Grants

Grants are included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income
received for specific purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance
sheet. Where income is received in advance of meeting any performance-related conditions there is not
unconditional entitlement to the income and its recognition is deferred and included in creditors as deferred
income until the performance-related conditions are met. Where entitlement occurs before income is received,
the income is accrued.

General Annual Grant is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is
receivable and any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and recognised as a liability.

Capital grants are recognised in full when there is an unconditional entitlement to the grant. Unspent amounts of
capital grants are reflected in the balance sheet in the restricted fixed asset fund. Capital grants are recognised
when there is entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended.

Sponsorship income

Sponsorship income provided to the academy trust which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of
Financial Activities in the period in which it is receivable (where there are no performance-related conditions),
where it is probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Donations
Donations are recognised on a receivable basis (where there are no performance related conditions), where it is
probable that the income will be received and the amount can be measured reliably.

Other income ’
Other income including the hire of facilities, is recognised in the period it is receivable and to the extent the
academy trust has provided the goods or services.

Donated goods, facilities and services

Goods donated for resale are included at fair value, being the expected proceeds from sale less the expected
costs of sale. If it is practical to assess the fair value at receipt, it is recognised in stock and Income from other
trading activities'. Upon sale, the value of the stock is charged against 'Income from other trading activities' and
the proceeds are recognised as 'Income from other trading activities'. Where it is impractical to fair value the
items due to the volume of low value items they are not recognised in the financial statements until they are sold.
This income is recognised within 'Income from other trading activities'.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

1.

Accounting policies - continued

Expenditure

Liabilities are recognised as expenditure as soon as there is a legal or constructive obligation committing the
academy trust to that expenditure, it is probable that a transfer of economic benefits will be required in settlement
and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. Expenditure is accounted for on an accruals basis and
has been classified under headings that aggregate all cost related to the category. Where costs cannot be directly
attributed to particular headings they have been allocated to activities on a basis consistent with the use of
resources.

Raising funds
Raising funds includes all expenditure incurred by the academy trust to raise funds for its charitable purposes and
includes costs of all fundraising activities, events and non-charitable trading.

Charitable activities
Costs of charitable activities are incurred on the academy trust's educational operations, including support costs
and costs relating to the governance of the academy trust apportioned to charitable activities.

Governance costs
These include the costs attributable to the academy trust’s compliance with constitutional and statutory
requirements, including audit, strategic management and trustees’ meetings and reimbursed expenses.

Tangible fixed assets
Depreciation is provided at the following annual rates in order to write off each asset over its estimated useful
life.

Leasehold land and buildings - over the expected useful economic life
L'hold property improvements - over the expected useful economic life
Fixtures and fittings - 25% on reducing balance

Computer equipment - 25% on cost

Note that no depreciation is charged on the land element contained within the leasehold land and buildings
category.

Assets costing £250 or more are capitalised as tangible fixed assets and are carried at cost, net of depreciation
and any provision for impairment.

Where tangible fixed assets have been acquired with the aid of specific grants, either from the government or
from the private sector, they are included in the Balance Sheet at cost and depreciated over their expected useful
economic life. The related grants are credited to a restricted fixed asset fund in the Statement of Financial
Activities and carried forward in the Balance Sheet. Depreciation on such assets is charged to the restricted fixed
asset fund in the Statement of Financial Activities so as to reduce the fund over the useful economic life of the
related asset on a basis consistent with the academy trust’s depreciation policy. Where tangible fixed assets have
been acquired with unrestricted funds, depreciation on such assets is charged to the unrestricted fund.

Assets in the course of construction are included at cost. Depreciation on these assets is not charged until they
are brought into use.

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value of any fixed asset may not be recoverable. Shortfalls between the carrying value of fixed assets
and their recoverable amounts are recognised as impairments. Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement
of Financial Activities.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

1.

Accounting policies - continued

Financial instruments
The academy trust only holds basic financial instruments as defined in FRS102. The financial assets and
financial liabilities of the academy trust and their measurement basis are as follows:

Financial assets - trade and other debtors are basic financial instruments and are debt instruments measured at
amortised cost as detailed in note 16. Prepayments are not financial instruments.

Cash at bank - is classified as a basic financial instrument and is measured at face value.

Financial liabilities - trade creditors, accruals and other creditors are financial instruments, and are measured at
amortised cost as detailed in note 17. Taxation and social security are not included in the financial instruments
disclosure definition. Deferred income is not deemed to be a financial liability, as the cash settlement has
already taken place and there is an obligation to deliver services rather than cash or another financial instrument.

Stocks
Unsold uniforms and catering stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value.

Taxation

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and
therefore it meets the definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the
academy trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect of income or capital gains received within categories
covered by part 11, chapter 3 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of the Taxation of Chargeable
Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes.

Fund accounting
Unrestricted funds can be used in accordance with the charitable objectives at the discretion of the trustees.

Restricted fixed asset funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by
funders where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose.

Restricted general funds comprise all other restricted funds received with restrictions imposed by the
funder/donor and include grants from the Education Funding Agency.

Further explanation of the nature and purpose of each fund is included in the notes to the financial statements.

Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The academy trust makes estimates and assumptions conceming the future. The resulting accounting estimates
and assumptions will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financial year are discussed below.

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of
factors that are determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in
determining the net cost (income) for pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions,
which are disclosed in note 23, will impact the carrying amount of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll
forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed at 31st March 2013
has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31st August 2019. Any differences between the
figures derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying
amount of the pension liability.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

1.

Accounting policies - continued

Hire purchase and leasing commitments
Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Statement of Financial Activities on a straight line basis
over the period of the lease.

Pension costs and other post-retirement benefits

Retirement benefits to employees of the academy trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’)
and the Local Government Pension Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes and the assets are held
separately from those of the academy trust.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over
employees’ working lives with the academy trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level
percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The contributions are determined by the Government
Actuary on the basis of quinquennial valuations using a prospective benefit method. As stated in note 23, the
TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the academy trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and
liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined
contribution scheme and the contributions recognised as they are paid each year.

The LGPS is a funded scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the academy trust in separate
trustee administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and labilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on
a high quality corporate bond of equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are
obtained at Jeast triennially and are updated at each balance sheet date. The amounts charged to operating surplus
are the current service costs and gains and losses on settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of
staff costs. Past service costs are recognised immediately in the Statement of Financial Activities if the benefits
have vested. If the benefits have not vested immediately, the costs are recognised over the period until vesting
occurs. The expected return on assets and the interest cost are shown as a net finance amount of other finance
costs or credits adjacent to interest. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other gains and
losses.

Conversion to an academy

The conversion of three academies from state maintained schools to part of the academy trust involved the
transfer of identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the school for £nil consideration. The substance
of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below:

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from Empingham CE Primary, Great Casterton CE Primary
and Uppingham CE Primary to the academy trust have been valued at their fair value. The fair value has been
derived based on that of equivalent items. The amounts have been recognised under the appropriate balance
sheet categories with a corresponding amount recognised in "Donations - transfer from local authority on
conversion” in the Statement of Financial Activities and analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted general
funds and restricted fixed asset funds.

Liabilities

Liabilities are recognised where there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is
probable that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement, and the amount of the settlement can
be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised at the amount that the academy trust aaticipates it will pay to
settle the debt or the amount it has received as advanced payments for the goods or services it must provide.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

2. Donations and capital grants

31/8/19 31/8/18
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Transfer of Cottesmore Academy - - - 1,715,970
Donations - 86,220 86,220 41,366
Grants - 259,121 259,121 450,484
Educational visits - 70,873 70,873 39,826
- 416,214 416,214 2,247,646
Grants received, included in the above, are as follows:
31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £
Capital grants 259,121 450,484
3. Funding for the academy's educational operations
31/8/19 31/8/18
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
DfE/ESFA revenue grant
General Annual Grant(GAG) - 4,487,943 4,487,943 3,160,346
Start up grants - 100,000 100,000 25,000
Other DfE / EFA grants - 697,626 697,626 511,072
- 5,285,569 5,285,569 3,696,418
Other government grant
Local Authority grants - 207,195 207,195 52,692
- 5,492,764 5,492,764 3,749,110
4. Other trading activities
31/8/19 31/8/18
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Hire of facilities 14,727 - 14,727 11,829
Catering income - 48,548 48,548 55,045
Breakfast & after school club - 51,676 51,676 24,369
Receipts from supply teacher insurance
claims - 27,422 27,422 18,327
Other generated income (inc Nursery
income) - 291,666 291,666 258,974
14,727 419,312 434,039 368,544
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

5. Investment income
31/8/19 31/8/18
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Deposit account interest 700 - 700 264
6. Expenditure
31/8/19 31/8/18
Non-pay expenditure
Staff costs Premises  Other costs Total Total
£ £ £ £ £
Raising funds
Costs of fundraising
Direct costs - - 104,128 104,128 74,604
Costs incurred by trading
for a fundraising purpose
Direct costs - - 1,121 1,121 2,997
Charitable activities
Academies educational
operations
Direct costs 3,911,076 - 296,303 4,207,379 3,009,818
Allocated support costs 644,251 815,841 618,758 2,078,850 1,455,478
4,555,327 815,841 1,020,310 6,391,478 4,542,897
Net resources are stated after charging/(crediting)
Year Ended Year Ended
31/08/19 31/08/18
£ £
Auditor's remuneration 12,000 9,500
Depreciation - owned assets 54,053 81,595
Depreciation - leasehold assets 62,483 31,455
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

7. Raising funds

Costs of fundraising

31/8/19 31/8/18
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Educational visits - 104,128 104,128 74,604
Costs incurred by trading for a fundraising purpose
31/8/19 31/8/18
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Purchases - 1,121 1,121 2,997
Aggregate amounts - 105,249 105,249 77,601
8. Charitable activities - academy’s educational operations
31/8/19 31/8/18
Unrestricted Restricted Total Total
funds funds funds funds
£ £ £ £
Direct costs - 4,207,379 4,207,379 3,009,818
Support costs - 2,078,850 2,078,850 1,455,478
- 6286229 6,286,229 4,465,296
31/8/19 31/8/18
Total Total
£ £
Analysis of support costs
Support staff costs 644,251 398,750
Depreciation 85,032 82,733
Technology costs 63,349 40,021
Premises costs 468,854 379,841
Other support costs 259,063 199,462
Governance costs 558,301 354,671
Total support costs 2,078,850 1,455,478
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The Rutland Learning T'rust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
- for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

9.

Trustees' remuneration and benefits

One or more trustees has been paid remuneration or has received other benefits from an employment with the
academy trust. The principal and other staff trustees only receive remuneration in respect of services they
provide undertaking the roles of principal and staff members under their contracts of employment, and not in
respect of their role as trustees.

The value of trustees’ remuneration and other benefits was as follows:

R Gooding (CEO and trustee):
Remuneration £95,000 - £100,000 (2018: £90,000 - £95,000)
Employer's pension contributions £15,000 - £20,000 (2018: £15,000 - £20,000)

A Raine (Staff Trustee):
Remuneration £15,000 - £20,000 (2018: £Nil)
Employer's pension contributions £0 - £5,000 (2018: £Nil)

Trustees' expenses

There were no trustees' expenses paid for the year ended 31st August 2019 nor for the year ended
31st August 2018. )

Page 49



The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

10. Staff costs

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £
Wages and salaries 3,597,730 2,493,516
Social security costs 299,022 205,732
Operating costs of defined benefit pension schemes 658,575 444,449

4,555,327 3,143,697
Supply teacher costs - 11,937

4,555,327 3,155,634

Included in the above staff costs is £33,867 relating to restructuring costs. This is made up as follows:

Redundancy payments £25,115
Severance payments £8,752
Total £33,867

The average number of persons (including senior management team) employed by the academy trust during the
year was as follows:

31/8/19 31/8/18

Teachers 63 49
Administration and support 114 112
Management 11 7
188 168

The number of employees whose employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs) exceeded £60,000 was:
¥

31/8/19 31/8/18

£60,001 - £70,000 1 1
£90,001 - £100,000 1 1
2 2

The above employees participated in the Teachers' Pension Scheme.

The key management personnel of the academy trust comprise the trustees and the senior management team as
listed on page 2. The total amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions) received by
key management personnel for their services to the academy trust was £249,640 (2018: £485,331).

11. Trustees' and officers' insurance

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education's risk protection arrangement (RPA), an
alternative to insurance where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and
officers from claims arising from negligent acts, errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy business, and
provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the trustees and officers indemnity element from
the overall cost of the RPA scheme.
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

12. Comparatives for the statement of financial activities
Restricted
Unrestricted fixed assets Restricted Total

fund fund fund funds

£ £ £ £
Income and endowments from
Donations and capital grants - 1,969,822 277,824 2,247,646
Transfer from Local Authority on conversion 140,601 34,017 (62,000) 112,618
Charitable activities
Funding for the academy's educational
operations - - 3,749,110 3,749,110
Other trading activities 11,830 - 356,714 368,544
Investment income 264 - - 264
Total 152,695 2,003,839 4,321,648 6,478,182
Expenditure on
Raising funds , - - 77,601 77,601
Charitable activities
Academy's educational operations - 113,051 4,352,245 4,465,296
Total - 113,051 4,429,846 4,542,897
Net income/(expenditure) 152,695 1,890,788 (108,198) 1,935,285
Transfers between funds - 3 10,218 (310,218) -
Other recognised gains/(losses)
Actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit
schemes - - 304,000 304,000
Net movement in funds 152,695 2,201,006 (114,416) 2,239,285
Reconciliation of funds
Total funds brought forward 109,834 1,129,270 (996,216) 242,888
Total funds carried forward 262,529 3,330,276 (1,110,632) 2,482,173
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

13.  Central services
The Academy Trust provided the following central services during the year:

- school improvement and quality assurance
- educational psychologists

- payroll and personnel (HR)

- financial services

- audit and accountancy

- legal support

- facilities management

The Trust charges for these services based on a top-slice of GAG of 5% or full recharge where costs relate to a
specific Academy.

The actual amounts charged during the year were as follows:

2019 2018
£ £
Whissendine 34,451 34,387
St.Nicholas ¢ 28,801 26,089
Ketton . 34,570 35,730
Langham 38,282 37,459
Cottesmore 36,829 16,967
Exton ' 16,193 8,096
Empingham CE Primary School 8,122 -
Great Casterton CE Primary School 9,877 -
Uppingham CE Primary School 16,807 -
Total 223,932 158,728
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

14.

15,

16.

Tangible fixed assets
Leasehold L'hold
land and property Fixtures and Computer
buildings improvements fittings equipment Totals
£ £ £ £ £

Cost
At 1st September 2018 1,735,182 1,473,608 178,316 235,676 3,622,782
Additions - 263,573 30,640 14,810 309,023
Transfer on joining Trust - - 3,335 - 3,335
At 31st August 2019 1,735,182 1,737,181 212,291 250,486 3,935,140
Depreciation
At 1st September 2018 10,501 36,952 63,123 181,928 292,504
Charge for year 31,504 30,979 35,569 18,484 116,536
At 31st August 2019 42,005 67,931 98,692 200,412 409,040
Net book value
At 31st August 2019 1,693,177 1,669,250 113,599 50,074 3,526,100
At 31st August 2018 1,724,681 1,436,656 115,193 53,748 3,330,278

With the exception of Cottesmore Academy, the trust has not included any amount in respect of the value of* land
and buildings as a result of instructions from the diocese. Whilst the diocese are in discussion with the ESFA to
agree how such assets should be treated and disclosed the trust has determined that they should be accounted for
in accordance with the instructions of the diocese.

If the value of the land and buildings were accounted for in accordance with the requirements of the ESFA the
overall closing position of the total funds would not be a deficit.

Stocks
31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £
Stocks . 3,771 -
Debtors: amounts falling due within one year
31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £
Trade debtors 90,862 81,831
Other debtors 1,768 1,768
VAT 193,920 217,398
Prepayments and accrued income ’ 266,755 235,660
553,305 536,657
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

17.  Creditors: amounts falling due within one year

31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £
Trade creditors 27,423 158,724
Social security and other taxes 95,830 60,558
Other creditors 12,839 10,649
Accruals and deferred income 105,365 41,823
Deferred government grants 147,913 122,451
389,370 394,205
Deferred income and government grants
2019 2018
£ £
Deferred income and government grants at 1st September 2018 122,451 89,924
Resources deferred in the year 159,450 122,451
Amounts released from previous years (122,451) (89,924)
Deferred income and government grants at 31st August 2019 159,450 122,451

At the balance sheet date, the academy trust was holding funds received in advance the following relating to the

2019/20 academic year:
UIFSM 118,415 98,401
Devolved Formula Capital 29,498 24,050
Trip Income 11,537 -
159,450 122,451

18.  Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year
31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £

Other loans (see note 19) 85,000 85,000

19. Loans
The above loan has been received from the ESFA due to the entry of Cottesmore Academy into the Rutland
Learning Trust. The trust will commence repayments of the loan in 2021 with the amount due to be repaid by
2024.

20. Leasing agreements

Minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases fall due as follows:

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £
Within one year 10,106 8,709
Between one and five years 14,410 10,650
24,516 19,359
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

21.  Members' liability

Each member of the charitable company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the company in the event of it
being wound up while he/she is a member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as

may be required, not exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member.

22. Movement in funds
Net Transfers
movement in between
At 1/9/18 funds funds At 31/8/19
£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds
General fund 262,529 255,833 - 518,362
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 123,864 97,297 (5,634) 215,527
Pension liability (1,344,000) (1,399,000) - (2,743,000)
Restricted fixed assets fund 3,330,276 (18,196) 214,020 3,526,100
Start up grant - 25,000 - 25,000
CIF Fund 109,504 164,046 (208,386) 65,164

2,219,644 (1,130,853) - 1,088,791
TOTAL FUNDS 2,482,173 (875,020) - 1,607,153
Net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement in

resources expended losses funds

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds
General fund 255,833 - - 255,833
Restricted funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 4,487,944 (4,390,647) - 97,297
Other DfE / EFA grants 697,626 (697,626) - -
Local Authority grants 207,195 (207,195) - -
Other 576,404 (576,404) - -
Pension liability (372,000) (328,000) (699,000) (1,399,000)
Restricted fixed assets fund 98,340 (116,536) - (18,196)
Start up grant 100,000 (75,000) - 25,000
CIF Fund 164,116 (70) - 164,046

5,959,625 (6,391,478) (699,000) (1,130,853)
TOTAL FUNDS 6,215,458 (6,391,478) (699,000) (875,020)
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The Rutland Learning Trust

Notes to the Financial Statements - continued
for the Year Ended 31st August 2019

22. Movement in funds - continued

Comparatives for movement in funds

Net Transfers
movement in between
At 1/9/17 funds funds At 31/8/18
£ £ £ £
Unrestricted Funds
General fund 109,834 152,695 - 262,529
Restricted Funds
General Annual Grant (GAG) 137,551 (15,597) 1,910 123,864
Other DfE / EFA grants 14,233 (14,233) - -
Pension liability (1,148,000) (196,000) - (1,344,000)
Restricted fixed assets fund 1,129,270 1,890,788 310,218 3,330,276
CIF Fund - 421,632 (312,128) 109,504
133,054 2,086,590 - 2,219,644

TOTAL FUNDS 242,888 2,239,285 - 2,482,173
Comparative net movement in funds, included in the above are as follows:

Incoming Resources Gains and Movement in

resources expended losses funds

£ £ £ £

Unrestricted funds
General fund 152,695 - - 152,695
Restricted funds
General Anpual Grant (GAG) 3,160,348 (3,175,945) - (15,597)
Other DfE / EFA grants 511,073 (525,306) - (14,233)
Local Authority grants 52,692 (52,692) - -
Other 437,903 (437,903) - -
Pension liability (287,000) (213,000) 304,000 (196,000)
Restricted fixed assets fund 2,003,839 (113,051) - 1,890,788
Start up grant 25,000 (25,000) - -
CIF Fund 421,632 - - 421,632

6,325,487 (4,542,897) 304,000 2,086,590
TOTAL FUNDS 6,478,182 (4,542,897) 304,000 2,239,285
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22.

Movement in funds - continued

Purposes of unrestricted funds

Included in unrestricted funds includes the surplus on conversion from a local authority school, income from
outsourcing of staff and other income generated from the other small donations, etc. which carry no specific
restrictions. These funds are available for the academy trust to use as deemed appropriate.

Purposes of restricted funds

The General Annual Grant represents the grant funding received from the ESFA in order to cover the on-going
costs of the academy trust. Under the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the academy trust was not
subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that it could carry forward at 31 August 2019.

Other DfE/ESFA grants received include amounts to cover the cost of insurance, and pupil premiums.

Local Authority grants include nursery / early years funding as well as funding to support children with special
education needs.

The Trust received a total of £100,000 by way of Start-Up Grants during the year. £75,000 related to the three
in-year convertors. The closing balance of £25,000 on the Start-Up Grant fund represents monies received in
relation to Glapthorn Primary School, which is due to join the Trust in 2019/20.

The balance on the CIF fund represents monies received but not yet spent as the projects to which they relate are
not yet completed.

Purposes of restricted fixed assets funds
The restricted fixed assets funds reflects resources received by the academy trust to acquire assets for continuing

use and furtherance of the trust's aims and objectives. Resources expended reflect the associated depreciation
charges as set out on the accounting policies.
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22, Movement in funds - continued

Analysis of academies by fund balance

Fund balances at 31st August 2019 were allocated as follows:

2019 2018
£ £
Central Fund 125,260 107,182
Whissendine 37,714 29,792
Ketton 11,204 23,776
St Nicholas 10,298 517
Langham 104,659 78,001
Exton 97,089 138,929
Cottesmore 98,450 8,196
Empingham 91,313 -
Uppingham 59,253 -
Great Casterton 98,649 -
Total before fixed assets and pension reserve 733,889 386,393
CIF Fund 65,164 109,504
Start-Up Fund 25,000 -
Restricted fixed assets funds 3,526,100 3,330,276
Pension reserve (2,743,000) (1,344,000)
Total 1,607,153 2,482,173
Analysis of academies by cost
Expenditure incurred by each academy during the period was as follows:
Teaching and
educational Other costs
support staff  Other support  Educational (excluding)
costs staff costs supplies  depreciation Total
£ £ £ £ £
Whissendine 706,258 77,277 28,641 288,974 1,101,150
Ketton 569,488 76,624 34,274 93,826 774,212
St Nicholas 540,120 85,351 33,800 180,369 839,640
Langham 771,397 109,345 41,730 122,982 1,045,454
Exton 238,688 86,279 24,062 36,870 385,899
Cottesmore 497,682 104,959 58,737 44237 705,615
Empingham 129,786 20,739 9,231 46,910 206,666
Uppingham 266,256 47,672 13,633 68,870 396,431
Great Casterton 135,498 36,005 8,896 54,285 234,684
Central 55,903 - 43,302 157,986 257,191
3,911,076 644,251 296,306 1,095,309 5,946,942
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23.

Pension and similar obligations

The academy trust's employees belong to two principal pension schemes: the Teachers' Pension Scheme England
and Wales (TPS) for academic and related staff; and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for
non-teaching staff, which is managed by Leicestershire County Council. Both are multi-employer defined
benefit schemes.

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31st March 2012 and of the LGPS 31st
March 2016.

There were no outstanding contributions at the beginning or end of the financial year.

Teachers' pension scheme

Introduction

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS) is a statutory, contributory, defined benefit scheme, governed by the
Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2014. Membership is automatic for full-time teachers in academies and, from 1st
January 2007, automatic for teachers in part-time employment following appointment or a change of contract,
although they are able to opt out.

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ‘pay as you go’ basis these contributions along
with those made by employers are credited to the Exchequer. Retirement and other pension benefits are paid by
public funds provided by Parliament.

Valuation of the Teachers' Pension Scheme

The Government Actuary, using normal actuarial principles, conducts a formal actuarial review of the TPS in
accordance with the Public Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014 published by
HM Treasury. The aim of the review is to specify the level of future contributions. Actuarial scheme valuations
are dependent on assumptions about the value of future costs, design of benefits and many other factors. The
latest actuarial valuation of the TPS was carried out as at 31 March 2012 and in accordance with the Public
Service Pensions (Valuations and Employer Cost Cap) Directions 2014. The valuation report was published by
the Department for Education on 9 June 2014. The key elements of the valuation and subsequent consultation
are:

- employer contribution rates set at 16.48% of pensionable pay (including a 0.08% employer
administration charge)

- total scheme liabilities (pensions currently in payment and the estimated cost of future benefits) for
service to the effective date of £191,500 million, and notional assets (estimated future contributions
together with the notional investments held at the valuation date) of £176,600 million giving a notional
past service deficit of £14,900 million

- an employer cost cap of 10.9% of pensionable pay will be applied to future valuations

- the assumed real rate of return is 3.0% in excess of prices and 2% in excess of earnings. The rate of real
earnings growth is assumed to be 2.75%. The assumed nominal rate of return is 5.06%

The TPS valuation for 2012 determined an employer rate of 16.48%, which was payable from September 2015.
The next valuation of the TPS is currently underway based on April 2016 data, whereupon the employer
contribution rate is expected to be reassessed and will be payable from 1st September 2019.

The pension costs paid to TPS in the period amounted to £354,000 (2018: £258,000).

A copy of the valuation report and supporting documentation is on the Teachers’ Pensions website.

Under the definitions set out in FRS 102, the TPS is a multi-employer pension scheme. The trust has accounted

for its contributions to the scheme as if it were a defined contribution scheme. The trust has set out above the
information available on the scheme.
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23.

Pension and similar obligations
- continued

Local government pension scheme

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme, with the assets held in separate trustee-administered
funds. The total contribution made for the year ended 31st August 2019 was £379,000 (2018: £236,000), of
which employer’s contributions totalled £305,000 (2018: £186,000) and employees’ contributions totalled
£74,000 (2018: £50,000) The agreed contribution rates for future years are 23.7% for employers and the
contribution for employees is dependant upon salary banding,

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of
academy closure, outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for
Education. The guarantee came into force on 18th July 2013.

The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows:
Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £
Present value of funded obligations (5,931,000) (3,602,000)
Fair value of plan assets 3,188,000 2,258,000

(2,743,000)  (1,344,000)

Deficit (2,743,000)  (1,344,000)

Liability (2,743,000)  (1,344,000)

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial activities are as follows:

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £
Current service cost 496,000 365,000
Net interest from net defined benefit asset/liability 119,000 82,000
Past service costs 91,000 -
706,000 447,000
Actual return on plan assets 129,000 51,000
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23.

Pension and similar obligations
- continued

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:

Defined benefit obligation

Current service cost

Past service costs

Contributions by scheme participants

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Business combinations

Remeasurements:

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in financial assumptions

Changes in the fair value of scheme assets are as follows:

Fair value of scheme assets

Contributions by employer

Contributions by scheme participants

Interest income on plan assets

Benefits paid

Business combinations

Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)

The amounts recognised in other recognised gains and losses are as follows:

\

Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial (gains)/losses from changes in financial assumptions
Return on plan assets (excluding interest income)

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £
3,602,000 2,824,000
496,000 365,000

91,000 -
74,000 50,000
119,000 82,000
(39,000) (34,000)
760,000 568,000
(329,000) -
1,157,000 (253,000)
5,931,000 3,602,000

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £

2,258,000 1,676,000
305,000 186,000
74,000 50,000
73,000 48,000
(39,000) (34,000)
388,000 281,000
129,000 51,000
3,188,000 2,258,000

Defined benefit pension plans

31/8/19 31/8/18

£ £
329,000 -
(1,157,000) 253,000
129,000 51,000
(699,000) 304,000

The major categories of scheme assets as a percentage of total scheme assets are as follows:

Equities
Bonds
Property
Cash
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23.

24,

Pension and similar obligations
- continued

Principal actuarial assumptions at the balance sheet date (expressed as weighted averages)

31/8/19 31/8/18
Discount rate 1.8% 2.8%
Future salary increases 3.3% 3.4%
Future pension increases 2.3% 2.4%
Commutation of pensions to lump sums 50% 50%
Inflation assumption CPI 23% 0%

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates. The

assumed life expectations on retirement age 65 are:
At 31/8/19 At 31/8/18

Retiring today :
Males 212 221
Females 234 243
Retiring in 20 years
Males 222 23.8
Females 24.7 26.2
Sensitivity Analysis

Approx monetary amount
Change in assumption as at : 31/08/19 31/08/18
0.5% decrease in Real Discount Rate £733,000 £425,000
0.5% increase in Salary Increase Rate . £52,000 £39,000
0.5% increase in Pension Increase Rate £669,000 £669,000
Related party disclosures

Owing to the nature of the academy trust and the composition of the board of trustees being drawn from local
public and private sector organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the trustees have
an interest. All transactions involving such organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of
the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on or after 1st April 2019 and obtaining their
approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial regulations and normal procurement procedures
relating to connected and related party transactions. .

No related party transactions took place during the year.
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The directors of The Peterborough Diocesan Board of Finance, in agreement with the Board of Education of the
Diocese of Peterborough, own the freehold interest in the buildings and some open land both of which are
occupied by The Rutland Learning Trust on a rent free licence to occupy.

This continuing permission of their trustees is pursuant to, and subject to, the Trustees' charitable objects, and is
part of the Church of England's contribution to provide State funded education in partnership with the State and
detailed in a supplemental agreement with the Trust. The licence delegates aspects of the management of the land
(and buildings) to the Academy Trust company for the time being, but does not vest any rights over the land in
the Academy Trust company, the terms of which have been agreed between the Secretary of State and the
directors of The Peterborough Diocesan Board of Finance, and within which is contained a termination clause on
the directors of The Peterborough Diocesan Board of Finance giving two years notice. The Trustees have
concluded that the land and buildings should not be recognised as an asset of the academy as the Academy Trust

The financial statements do not reflect any notional rental expense for the donated use of the land and buildings
as the trustees have concluded that no reliable figure can be measured for this donation as there are no rental
premises for academy operations which are considered to be comparable and reliably measured.

25.  Licence to occupy
does not control the asset.
26. Conversion to an academy

On 1st March 2019, Empingham Primary School converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010
and joined The Rutland Learning Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Rutland
Leamning Trust from Rutland County Council for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assets and liabilities transferred were
valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings, with a
corresponding net amount recognised as incoming resources in the Statement of Financial Activities as voluntary
income. The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred with an analysis of their recognition in
the SOFA is as follows:

Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds funds funds Total
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
- freehold land and buildings - - - -
- leasehold land and buildings - - - -
- other tangible fixed assets - - 3,335 3,335
Budget surplus on LA funds 91,102 - - 91,102
LGPS pension deficit (combined) - (79,000) - (79,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) 91,102 (79,000) 3,335 15,437

On 1st March 2019, Great Casterton Primary School converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010
and joined The Rutland Learning Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Rutland
Learning Trust from Rutland County Council for £Nil consideration,

The transfer has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assets and liabilities transferred were
valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings, with a
corresponding net amount recognised as incoming resources in the Statement of Financial Activities as voluntary
income. The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred with an analysis of their recognition in
the SOFA is as follows:
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Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset
funds funds funds Total
£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
- freehold land and buildings - - - -
- leasehold land and buildings - - - -
- other tangible fixed assets - - - -
Budget surplus on LA funds 107,429 - - 107,429
LGPS pension deficit (combined) - (128,000) - (128,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) 107,429 (128,000) - (117,571)

On 1st March 2019, Uppingham Primary School converted to academy status under the Academies A 2010 and
joined The Rutland Learning Trust. All operations and assets and liabilities were transferred to The Rutland
Learning Trust from Rutland County Council for £Nil consideration.

The transfer has been accounted for using the acquisition method. The assets and liabilities transferred were
valued at their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings, with a
corresponding net amount recognised as incoming resources in the Statement of Financial Activities as voluntary
income. The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred with an analysis of their recognition in

the SOFA is as follows:
Restricted
Unrestricted Restricted fixed asset

funds funds funds Total

£ £ £ £
Tangible fixed assets
- freehold land and buildings - - - -
- leasehold land and buildings - - - -
- other tangible fixed assets - - - -
Budget surplus on LA funds 41,875 - - 41,875
LGPS pension deficit (combined) - (162,000) - (162,000)
Net assets/(liabilities) 41,875 (162,000) - (120,125)

27.  Reconciliation of net income/(expenditure) to net cash flow from operating activities
31/8/19 31/8/18
£ £

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement
of financial activities) (159,206) 1,935,285
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 116,536 113,051
Capital grants from DfE/ESFA (259,121) (450,484)
Transfer from Local Authority on conversion 128,259 (112,618)
Interest received (700) (264)
Assets/pension on Conversions - (1,715,969)
Cash on Conversions 240,406 140,601
Increase in stocks (3,771) -
Increase in debtors (16,648) (234,705)
(Decrease)/increase in creditors (21,649) 99,465
Difference between pension charge and cash contributions 328,000 213,000
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 352,106 (12,638)
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